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Lleida, 25th October 2024 
 
 
 

Relevant event: 
 

Comparison with the semi-annual data progress for 2023, presentation of the limited review 
report, and consolidated interim financial statement. 

 
Under the provisions of Article 17 of  Regulation (EU) nº596/2014 regarding market abuse and 
Article 227 of  the consolidated text of the Spanish Stock Market Act, approved by Spanish Royal 
Legislative Decree 6/2023, of 17 March and related provisions, as well as Circular 3/2020 BME 
GROWTH of BME MTF Equity on information to be provided by Growing Companies, we hereby 
inform you of the following information relating to LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÀTICS, 
S.A.: 
 
On July 23, 2024, the Company published a Relevant Event, providing a preliminary update on 
the key figures of the Company's consolidated Income Statement and debt. This preliminary 
update was drawn up based on the available accounting information.  
 
To date, this information is complemented with the following documents: 
 

- Limited Review Report and consolidated interim financial statements as of June 30, 
2024. 

- Balance sheets and income statement of the parent company as of June 30, 2024. 
 
We remain at your disposal for any clarifications you may deem necessary.   
  
Regards   
  
  
  
  
Francisco Sapena Soler  
CEO of Lleida.net   
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Lleida.net Group’s First Half 2024 Results Report 
  
  
On July 23, 2024, the Lleida.net Group published a preliminary results update based on the 
provisional data available. Following the review by the Company's auditors, the variation 
between the preliminary figures and those included in the annual consolidated accounts 
formulated by the Board of Directors is provided  
 

 
  
The variations are minor compared to the data presented in the preliminary results and are 
mainly due to a reclassification of expenses between external services and other income. 

  
The main differences from the 2023 figures are as follows. 
 

 

Data in thousands of Euros HR 2024 Audit 2024 QoQ. € QoQ.%
Sales 9,576 9,576 0 0%
Sales costs (4,533) (4,533) 0 0%
Gross Margin 5,043 5,043 0 0%
Personnel expenses (2,840) (2,840) 0 0%
External Services (1,330) (1,333) 3 0%
Capitalisations 518 518 0 0%
EBITDA 1,391 1,388 (3) 0%
Other income 42 46 4 10%
Depreciation (1,042) (1,042) 0 0%
Results from Disposal - -
Other results (3) 3 -
Total operation costs 391 389 0 0%
Net Financial Debt (115) (114) (1) -1%
Impairment and earnings for disposal 0 -
Exchange Rate Differences (14) (14) 0 0%
Earnings before Tax 262 261 (1) 0%
Taxes 
Net Income 262 261 (1) 0%

Data in thousands of Euros 2023 (6 months) 2024 (6 months) QoQ. € QoQ.%
Sales 8,734 9,576 842 10%
Sales costs (3,740) (4,533) 793 21%
Gross Margin 4,994 5,043 49 1%
Personnel expenses (3,386) (2,840) (546) -16%
External Services (1,811) (1,333) (478) -26%
Capitalisations 444 518 74 17%
EBITDA 241 1,388 1,147 476%
Other Income 26 46 20 77%
Depreciation (1,039) (1,041) 2 0%
Results from Disposal - -
Other results (7) (4) - -
Total operation costs (779) 389 1,168 -150%
Net Financial Debt (66) (114) 48 73%
Impairment and earnings for disposal 0 -
Exchange Rate Differences (11) (14) 3 27%
Earnings before Tax (856) 261 1,117 -130%
Taxes 
Net Income (856) 261 1,117 -130%
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The Group achieved a 10% increase in sales during the first half of 2024 compared to the same 
period in 2023. There is a significant change in the mix, with ICX Wholesale Solutions accounting 
for 38% of total sales in 2024, compared to 32% in 2023. 
 

 
 
Despite being a mature market characterised by low margins, Lleida.net has a strong brand 
reputation, which is reflected in a 28% increase in sales in the Wholesale market. Our strategy 
in this business line focuses on maintaining profit margins per sale.  
 
Sales of the SMS Solutions line, aimed at our domestic customers, have also grown by €101,000 
due to product quality and customer trust. 
 
The SaaS line has shown varied developments. Sales from contracting services are approaching 
€1.6 million, driven by the individually configurable standard workflows for clients. Our strategy 
focuses on increasing the number of standard users, which require fewer technical resources 
and offer higher profitability. Additionally, we have directed our commercial strategy toward 
sector-specific verticals, providing standard Click & Sign solutions that enable replicable 
processes across various transactions. This approach has had a progressive impact on our sales 
by simplifying processes that are more cost-effective than custom developments, leading to 
higher profitability and a larger market potential. 
 
Other SaaS includes service licences, as well as all email verification, time stamping, phone 
numbers, and identity transactions. There has been an 11% decrease this semester, amounting 
to €192,000, primarily due to the non-renewal of unprofitable contracts, shifting the commercial 
focus towards more transactional billing and less custom development, which carried lower 
margins. 
 
The gross margin on sales increased by 1% in absolute terms due to the relative weight of 
Wholesale sales, which have a lower margin on total sales. 
 
In December 2023, the Group undertook a workforce adjustment process, reducing the average 
workforce by 26% during the semester compared to the same period in 2023. Custom work, 
which requires more labour, has been a focus of this strategy.  In the long term, we aim to reduce 
revenue associated with these personalised processes, gradually compensating for the increase 
in standard products.  This transition will free up resources, allowing us to develop new features 
and improve operational efficiency.  As a result, personnel costs have decreased by 16%. 
 
External service expenses have been reduced to €1.3 million, a 26% decrease compared to the 
same period in 2023.  This saving is the result of a thorough analysis of each item, aimed at 
optimising both trade show participation and business travel. Additionally, the recovery plan has 
been crucial to cost reduction, eliminating rent fees, advisors, insurance, and any other 
optimisable expense. 

Estimated consolidated sales per business line Thousa  2023 (6 months) 2024 (6 months) QoQ. € QoQ.%
Contracts 1,622 1,588 -34 -2%
Notification 880 1,032 152 17%
Other SaaS 1,705 1,513 -192 -11%
SMS solutions 1,664 1,765 101 6%
ICX WHOLESALE 2,863 3,678 815 28%
Total 8,734 9,576 842 10%
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The semi-annual EBITDA stands at €1.388 million, representing a 476% increase compared to 
the same period of the previous year.  This increase is due to both the growth in sales and cost 
reduction, demonstrating that the Lleida.net Group has returned to profitability. 
 
Operating income is €389,000, up more than €1 million from the first six months of 2023. 
Finally, the pre-tax result is €261,000, which represents a 130% increase compared to the same 
period of the previous year. 
 
 
 

 
 
In the Balance Sheet, intangible assets have decreased due to the amortisation of goodwill, and 
the amortisation of new intangible assets is lower than the amount amortised during the period. 
The Group continues to invest in R&D, amounting to €518,000 during the period to maintain its 
pioneering position in the sector.  
 
The variation in fixed assets is minimal, explained by the period's amortisation.The semester's 
pre-calculation explains the increase in deferred tax assets. 
 
In current assets, there is a 12% increase in receivables, amounting to €631,000 less than at the 
end of December 2023, due to the increase in sales.  The Group's total available funds (cash and 
short-term financial investments) are €196,000 lower to meet the Group's loan payments. 
 
Equity increased by 16%, which is explained by the profits from the first half of 2023 and the 
lower number of own shares. Trade creditors and other accounts payable increased by 26%, 
derived from the increase in purchases required to meet the sales growth. 
 
Financial debt decreased from €10.8 million in December 2023 to €9.6 million. This section 
includes both the debt with former partners of Lleida.net PKI S.L. (formerly Indenova S.L.) for 
outstanding loans, as well as pending payments, regardless of whether they are paid in shares 
or cash. 
  

31/12/2023 30/06/2024 QoQ. € QoQ.%
TOTAL EQUITY 2,958 3,431 473 16%
Equity 3,020 3,554 534 18%
Adjustments for changes in value 64 35 (29) -45%
Minority Interests -126 -158 (32) 25%

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,706 4,737 (969) -17%
Long-term provisions 200 9 (191)
Long term debts 5,481 4,704 (777) -14%
Deferred tax assets 25 24 (1)

CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,906 9,344 438 5%
Short term provisions 41 241 200 488%
Short term debts 5,357 4,887 (470) -9%
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable 3,279 4,144 865 26%
Accruals 229 72 (157) -69%

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,570 17,512 (58) 0%
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In the preliminary results of July 23, 2024, the net financial debt was reported at €8.407 million, 
with no differences compared to the data included in the semi-annual accounts.  The net 
financial debt represents 3.03 times the annualised EBITDA, compared to 112 times at the end 
of 2023. 

Data in thousands of euros 31/12/2023 30/06/2024
Long term debts 5,481 4,704
Short term debts 5,357 4,887
Total debt 10,838 9,591

Short term financial investments 362 105
Cash and other equivalent liquid assets 1,017 1,079
Total available 1,379 1,184

Net Financial Debt (NFD) 9,459 8,407
 NFD/Annualized EBITDA 112.61 3.03
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ANO SUBSIDIARIES 

lnterim Consolidated Financia[ Statements and 
Consolidated Directors' Report far the period ended on 

June, 30th 2024 together with the lndependent Auditor's 
Report on the lnterim Consolidated Financia[ Statements 

LIMITED REVIEW AUDIT REPORT ON THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD 
ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2024: 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 
Consolidated lncome and Expenses Statement far the six-month period ended on June 30, 
2024 and the six-month period ended on June 30, 2023. 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity far the six-month period ended on June 30, 2024 
and far the six-month period ended on June 30, 2023. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows far the six-month period ended on June 30, 2024 and 
the six-month period ended on June 30, 2023. 
Notes to the Consolidated lnterim Financia[ Statements as of June 30, 2024. 

C0NS0LIDATED DIRECT0RS' REP0RT F0R THE SIX-M0NTH PERI0D ENDED 0N JUNE 30th 2024 



LLEIDANET SERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

LIMITED REVIEW AUDIT REPORT ON THE INTERIM 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



IBDO 
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(Translation of the report origina/ly issued in Spanish. 
In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish Language version prevails) 

Limited Review Report on the lnterim 
Consolidated Financia! Statements 

To the Shareholders of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. 

Limited review report on the interim consolidated financia! statement 

lntroduction 

We have reviewed the interim consolidated financia! statements of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS 
TELEMATICS, S.A. (Parent Company) AND SUBSIDIARIES (The Group), which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2024, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash-flow statement and the notes to the interim 
consolidated financia! statements for the six-month period then ended. The directors of the Parent 
Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the interim consolidated 
financia! statements in accordance with the regulatory framework of financia! information applicable 
to the Group in Spain, as identified in Note 2.a of the accompanying notes to the interim consolidated 
financia! statements, and of the interna! control deemed necessary to enable the preparation of the 
interim consolidated financia! statements free of material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim consolidated financia! statements 
based on our limited review. 

Scope of review 

We have performed our limited review in accordance with the lnternational Standard on Review 
Engagements 2410 "Review of lnterim Financia! lnformation performed by the lndependent Auditor 
of the Company". A limited review on interim consolidated financia! statements consists of making 
inquiries primarily of persons responsible for financia! and accounting matters, and applying 
analytical procedures and other review procedures. A limited review has a substantially lower scope 
than an audit conducted in accordance with the regulations governing the auditing of accounts and, 
therefore, does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of ali significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit. Therefore, we do not express an audit opinion on the 
interim consolidated financia! statements. 

Conclusion 

Based on our limited review, which cannot be understood as an audit of accounts, nothing has 
come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim consolidated 
financia! statements does not present fairly, in ali material respects the true and fair view of the 
consolidated equity and consolidated financia! position of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS 
TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES, as of June 30, 2024, as well as its consolidated results and its 
consolidated cash-flows for the six-month period then ended, in accordance with the applicable 
financia! information regulatory framework and, in particular, with the accounting principies and 
criteria contained therein. 

Other matters 

This report has .been prepared at the request of the Board of Directors of LLEIDANETWORKS 
SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. in connection with the publication of the six-month period financia[ 
report required by the Circular 2/2022, BME Growth on "lnformation to be provided by companies 
listed for trading in the BME Growth segment of BME MFT Equity". 

BDO Auditores, S.L.P. (ROAC nº S1273) 

October 24, 2024 

8D0 Auditores S.L. P., Inscr ita en el Registro Oficial de Auditores de Cuentas 11º S 1.273, es una sociedad limi tada española Independiente, miembro de 800 
lnlernational Llmited, una compañia limitada por garantía del Reino Unido y rorma parte de la red internacional BDO de empresas independientes asociadas. 

Registro Mercantil de Barcelona, Tomo 47.820, Folio 131,Seccfón 8', Hoja 0-563.253, (Inscripción 124), CIF: 0-82387572. 
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lnterim Consolidated Financia/ Statements of Group lleidanetworks Serve is Telematics, S.A. and Subsidiaries 
for the six-111011/h period ended 011 June 30, 2024•~ - --- ------ ---- --------- --'-' 

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. 
ANO SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023 

(Expressed in Euros) 

Notes to tite 
Consolidatcd 

ASSETS Annual Accounts 30/06/2024 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 10.354.129, 79 

Intangible asscts Note 5 9.150.784,27 
Goodwill 0 11 consolidat ion 3.277.761,32 
Research 2.538.628,69 
Industrial prope11y 813.578,16 
Other intangib le asset 2.520.816, 10 

T angible fixcd asscts Notc6 47 1.422,02 
Land and buildings 140.885,80 
Technical installations and other tangible fixed assets 273.155,62 
Fixed assels under construction and advances 57.380,60 

Long-term financia! investmcnts Note 8 91.242,99 

Deferred Tax Asscts Note 14 640.680,51 

CURRENT ASSETS 7.158.330,02 

Tradc and othcr rcccivablcs 5. 778.884,75 
Client receivables fo r sales and services Note 8.2 4.435.515, 17 
Sundry debtors Note 8.2 94.935,29 
Staff Note 8.2 2.1 87,45 
Cmrent tax assets Note 14 1.085.8 14,00 
Other receivables from Public Authorities Note 14 160.432,84 

Short-tcrm financia! asscts Note 8.2 104.514,49 

Short-tcrm accrnals 195.629,79 

Cash ami casb cquivalcnts Note 8.1 1.079.300,99 

Cash 1.079.300,99 

TOTAL ASSETS 17 .5U.459,81 

31/12/2023 

1 o. 758.513,23 

9.536.807,30 
3.50 1.41 6,33 
2.502.069,67 

757.9 11 ,63 
2.775.409,67 

534.790,24 
143.440,41 
333.969,23 

57.380,60 

91.335,07 

595.580,62 

6.811.361,12 

5.147.513,23 
3.862.974, 13 

89.464,46 
174,03 

1.1 58.179,03 
36.72 1,58 

362.390,75 

284.233,27 

1.017.223,87 
1.017 .223,87 

17.569.874,35 
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LLEIDANETWORKSSERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 ANO DECEMBER 31, 2023 

x ressed in Euros 

EQUlT\' AND LlAllILrfillS 

EQUITY 

Equity 

Ca¡iital 
Share Capital 

lssuc Premium 

Reserves 
Legal and statuto1y 
Other Reserves 

(Shares and own holdings in cquity) 

Financia! ycar result 
attributcd to thc parcnt company 
Consolidatecl Losses and Profits 
(Minority interest losses and profits) 

Financia! rcsult from previous ycars 

Adjustments for changcs in valuc 

Minority interests 

NON-CURRENT LlAlllLITIES 

Long-tcrm provisions 

Long-tcrm dcbts 

Debts with credit institutions 
Other financia! liabi lities 

Dcfcrrcd fax liabilitics 

CURRENT LIAilILITIES 

Short-term provisions 
Other provisions 

Short-tcrms dcbts 
Debts with credit institutions 
Other financia! liabi lities 

Trade and othcr paya bles 
Suppliers 
Sundry cred itors 
Staff (remuneration payable) 
Curren! tax liabilities 
Other debts with Public Authorities 
Advances from clients 

Accrnals 

TOTAL EQUJTY AND LJABlLlTIES 

Notes to tbe Consolidatcd 
Annual Accounts 

Note 12.1 

Note 12.3 

Note 12.2 

No te 12.4 

Note 18 

Note 4 

Note 19 

Note 9. 1.1 
Note 9. 1.2 

Note 19 

Nota 9. 1.1 
Nota 9.1.2 

Note 9. 1 
Note 9.1 
Note 9. 1 
Note 14 
Note 14 
Note 9.J 

30/06/2024 

3.431.832,64 

3.554.998,26 

320.998,86 
320.998,86 

5.244.344,28 

1.921.374,86 
64. 199,77 

1.857 .175,09 

( 478.508,03) 

338.508,61 
3 12.3 13,89 

26. 194,72 

(3.791.720,32) 

35.107,48 

(158.273,JO) 

4. 736. 758,95 

8.474,45 

4.704.088,48 

3.7 14.565,65 
989.522,83 

24.196,02 

9.343.868,22 

241.043,51 
24 1.043,51 

4.887.071,66 
4.263.033,35 

624.038,3 1 

4.143.597,07 
2.8 10.402,47 

482.495,39 
137.666,77 

3.409,7 1 
626.861,24 

82.761,49 

72.155,98 

17.512.459,81 

31/12/2023 

2.958.032,40 

3.020.490,79 

320.998,86 
320.998,86 

5.244.344,28 

3.231.450,52 
64. 199,77 

3.167.250,75 

(1.448.058,18) 

(2.614.015,03) 
(2.656.623,22) 

42.608,19 

(1.714.229,66) 

63.623,71 

(126.082,10) 

5.706.249,16 

200.000,00 

5.481.086,95 

4.49 L.564, 12 
989.522,83 

25.162,21 

8.905.592,79 

40.325,36 
40.325,36 

5.357.296,81 
4.488.668,55 

868.628,26 

3.278.814,54 
1.987.124,34 

375.595,06 
27.468,78 

6 13.308,54 
275.3 17,82 

229.156,08 

17.569.874,35 
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LLEIDANETWORKSSERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSES 
STATEMENT FOR THE SJX-MONTH 

PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2024 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS 

Net turnovcr 

AND THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD 
ENDED ON JUNE 301 2023 

(Expressed in Euros) 

Notes to thc 
Consoliclateil 

Annual Accounts 

Note 15.a 

Work performecl by the Company for its asscts 

Supplics Note 15.b 

Goods consumed 
Work carried out by other companies 

Other opcrating incomc 

Staff expenses 
Wage, salaries and the like 
Fringe benelits Note 15.c 

Other operating expenses 
Externa! charges for services 
Taxes 
Losses, lmpairment and change in trade provisions Note 8.2 

Amortization of fixed assets Notes 5 all(I 6 

Othcr earnings 

OPERATING EARNIGS 

Financial incomc Note 15.d 

Financial expenses Note 15.d 

Excbange differences No te 15.d 

FINANCIAL EARNINGS 

PRE-TAX EARNINGS 

Profit fax Note 14 

FINANCJAL YEAR'S EARNINGS 

Result attributcd to thc Parent Company Note 18 

Rcsult attributcd to minority intcrcsts 

2024 (6 months) 

9.576.003,96 

517.804,27 

( 4.532.938,54) 
(4,515.929,06) 

( 17 .009,48) 

45.641,29 

(2.839.970,69) 
(2 .202.695,99) 

(637.274,70) 

(1.332.685,18) 
(1.274. 191 ,89) 

(52.293,89) 
(6. 199,40) 

(1.041.449,37) 

(3.315,60) 

389.090,14 

5.592,02 

(120.121,48) 

( 13.824,38) 

(128.353,84) 

260.736,30 

51.577,59 

312.313,89 

338.508,61 

(26.194,72) 

2023 (6 months) 

8.734.054,80 

443.428,90 

(3. 740.492,46) 
(3.740.492,46) 

26.167,26 

(3.385.755,24) 
(2.627.895,72) 

(757.859,52) 

(1.811.127,33) 
( 1.704.851,07) 

(39.212,71) 
(67 .063,55) 

(l .o39. I 50,70) 

(76.509,42) 

(849.384,19) 

1.266,36 

(67.184,23) 

(10.876,17) 

(76. 794,04) 

(926.178,23) 

65.593,18 

(860.585,05) 

(839.008,85) 

(21.576,20) 
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LLEIDANETWORl(S SERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANCES lN EQUITY 

A) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED 
INCOME ANO EXPENSE FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2024 AND 

THE SJX-MONTH PERIOD EN DEO ON JUNE 30, 2023 

CONSOLIDATED llESULT FOR TBE YEAR 

lncome a111J expenses rccognised 
directly to cquity 
Conversion differences 

(Expressed i11 Euros) 

TOTAL IN COME AND EXPENSE RECOGNlSED 
DJRECTL Y IN EQUlTY CONSOLIDATED EQUITY 

Transfcrs to thc profit ami loss accounl 

TOTAL TRANSFERS TO CONSOLIDATED 
PROFJT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

TOTAL RECOGNISED CONSOLIDATED 
CONSOLIDA TED RECOGNISED 
TNCOJVill AND EXPENSES 

Total income and expenses 
attributable to the Paren! Company 
Total income and expenses attributed lo minority interests 

2024 (6 mo1lths) 

312.313,89 

(34.5 12,52) 

(34.512,52) 

277.801,37 

309.836,23 

(32.034,86) 

2023 (6 months) 

(860.585,05) 

11.549, 1 O 

11.549,10 

(849.035,95) 

(827.459,75) 

(2 1.576,20) 
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LLEIDANETWORl{S SERYEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. AND SUIJSIDIAIUES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANCES IN EQUITY FOR TI-IE SIX-MONTI·I PERIOD 
ENDED ON ,JUNE 30, 2024 AND TIIE SIX-MONTII PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2023 

(Expressed in euros) 

Re.serves imd n c.sult 11Urilu,1cd 
Shnrc Shorc ,,revious finnncinl Own huldings in lu lhe Pnrent Adjnstmcnls für Mlnorlty 

Cu IIRI Premium •c.:tr's lncome e uU Commu chnn es in vnlue inlcresls Tolnl 

.BALANCE, END OF 2022 320.998,86 S.244.344,28 2.382.907,47 (l.731.481,07) (462.968,90) 11.373,14 (92.4.14,15) 5.672. 759,63 

TotAI rccoguiud incomc nnd expenses (839.008,85) 11.549, to (2 1.576,20) (849.035,95) 

Trnnsnctions with shnrcholde.rs: (94.515,78) 69.978,68 (24.537,10) 

Trnnsactions with own cquity instruments (nct) (94.SIS,78) 69.978,68 (24.537, 1 O) 

Olhcr clurngcs in cquity: (462.968,90) 462.968,90 8,63 8,63 

Distribution of camings from the previous ycnr (462.968,90) 462.968,90 
Othcr movemenls 8,63 8,63 

BALANCE AS OF JlJNE 30, 2023 320.998,86 S.244.344,28 J.825.422,79 (J.661.502,39) (839.008,85) 22.922,24 (113.981,72) 4.799.195,21 

BA l,ANCE, END OF 2023 320.998,86 5.244.344,28 J.517.220,86 (1.448.058,18) (2.6 14.015,03) 63.623,71 (126.082,10) 2.958.032,40 

Totril ,·cc.ognized incomc nnd cxJlcnses 338.508,61 (28.516,23) (32.191,01) 277.801,37 

Trnns11cl ions with shnrcholdcrs: (773.397,13) 969.550,15 196. 153,02 

Transactions wilh own equity instrumcnts (net) (773.397,13) 969.550, IS 196.153,02 

Other clrnnges in c<¡nity: (2.614.169,19) 2.614.015,03 (154,16) 

Distribution of eamings from the previous ycar (2.614.015,03) 2.614.015,03 

Other movcmcnls (154,16) (IS<l.16) 

DA LANCE AS 01' J UNE 301 2024 320.998,86 5.244.344128 (J.870.345,46) (478.508,03) 338.508,61 35.107,48 (158.2731lt) 3.431.832,63 
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PEIUOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2024 
ANO THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2023 

(Expressed in Euros) 

CASH FLOWFROM OPERATING ACTIVlTIES 

Financia! year 's pre-tax earnings 

AdJustments to earnings 
Fixed asset ammt isation 
Valuation cbanges for impairment 
Gains and losses 011 derecognition and disposal of fixed assets 
Financia! income 
Financia! expenses 

C hanges in curren! capita l 
Stocks 
Debtors and other accounts receivable 
Other curren! assets 
Trade payables and other accounts payable 
Othcr curren! liabililies 
Other non-curren! assets and liabilities 

Other cash now from opcrating ncth•itics 
[nterest payments 
Receipts of interests 
Receipts (payments) for profit tax 

CASR FLOW FROM JNVESTMENT ACTIYITIES 

Paymcnts for invcstments 
Intangible assets 
Tangible assets 
Other financia! assets 

Divcstmcnt proceeds 
Lntangible assets 
Tangible assets 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITLES 

Rcccipts all() paymcnts for eq uity instrumcnts 
Disposals (Acquisitions) of owu equity instruments 

Rcccipts and paymcnts for financial-liabi lity instrnmcnts 

Iss11a11ce 
Amouuts owed to credit instituLions 
Olhers 

Rep11y111e11I (//1// (//IIOrlisaliOII of: 
Amounts owecl to credil instilulions 
Others 

NET INCREASE/DECREASE OF 
CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents at start ofthe financia! year 
Cash ancl cash equivalents at end ofthe financia! year 

2024 
(6 months) 

1.520.350,06 

260.736,30 

1.162.896,37 
1.041.449,37 

6.199,40 
718,15 

(5 .592,03) 
120.121,48 

131.516,06 
(552, 16) 

(709.387,84) 
88.607,48 

909.848,67 
( 157.000,09) 

(34.798,67) 
( 12 1.676,93) 

5.592,02 
8 1.286,24 

(653.347,75) 

(653.347,75) 
(552.401 ,7 1) 

(8.914,38) 
(92.03 1,66) 

(804.925,20) 

196.153,02 
196. 153,02 

(J.001.078,22) 

762.963,62 
76 1.408, 17 

1.555,45 

(1.764.041 ,84) 
( 1.764.041,84) 

62.077,ll 

1.017.223,87 
1.079.300,98 

2023 
(6 moaths) 

358.183,00 

(926.178,23) 

1.242.132,12 
1.039.150,70 

137.063,55 

( 1.266,36) 
67.184,23 

282.376,56 
(1.676,11) 

275.537,86 
80.603,55 

(62.219,80) 
(9.868,94) 

(240.147,45) 
(67.184,23) 

1.266,36 
( 174.229,58) 

(659.366,89) 

(659.366,89) 
(531.827,30) 
( 1 17.590,90) 

(9.948,69) 

(48.550,50) 

(24.537,10) 
(24 .537,10) 

(24.013,40) 

420.000,00 
420.000,00 

(444.013,40) 
(373.470,26) 

(70.543, 14) 

(349.734,39) 

1.660.467,79 
1.310.733,40 



ln/erim Consolidated Financia/ Stalemenls of Group Lleidcmelworks Serve is Te/e111i1tics, S.A. and Subsidiaries 
for the six-111011/h period ended 011 June 30, 2024 __________ ____ ___ _ ___ _,_7 

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S.A. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE l. INCORPORATION, ACTIVITIBS AND LEGAL SYSTEM OF THE PARENT 
COMPANY 

a) lncorporation and registered Office of the Parent Company 

LLEIDANETWORI(S SERVEIS TELEMÁTICS, S. A. (hereinafter "the Company"), was 
incorporated in Lleida on 30 January 1995. On 26 October 2021, the board of directors resolved 
to transfer the company's registered office to Calle Téllez, 56 Local C in Madrid. Previously, 
its registered office was located in the Agroalimentari Scientific and Technological Park of 
Lleida, Building Hl , Floor 2, in Lleida. 

On June 30, 2011, the General Shareho lders' Meeting resolved the transformation from a 
Limited Company to a Public Limited Company. On December 12, 2011 , the agreement 
reached at the aforementioned meeting was submitted to the Mercantile Registry on February 
17, 2012. 

b) Activity of the Parent Company 

Its activity consists in acting as a teleoperator for short message management services (SMS) 
over the Internet, as well as any other activity related to the aforementioned corporate purpose. 

c)Activities of the Group Companies 

Main activity of the subsidiaries consists in the provision of telecommunications services, the 
development of programs, the sending of text messages and electronic mail, and the provision 
of study services and analysis of computer processes in general. 

d) Legal System of the Parent Company 

Parent Company is governed by its Articles of Association and by the current Corporate 
Enterprises Act. 
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e) Ouotation in Stocks Markets 

On 1 June 2015, the Parent Company approved at the General Shareholders' Meeting the 
application to li st ali the shares of the Parent Company on the Alternative Equity Market 
(MAB), currently called BME Growth, of ali of the Parent Company's shares. 

On October 7, 20 15, the Board of Directors of Bolsas y Mercados Españo les, Sistemas de 
Negociación, S.A., approved to incorporate l6,049,943 shares into the expanding companies 
segment of the Mercado Alternativo Bursáti l with effect from October 9, 2015 of 0.02 euros 
nominal value each. The Parent Company currently has Solventis A.V., S.A. appointed as 
liquidity provider and Registered Advisor. On December 19, 2018, the Parent Company began 
trading under the dual listing modality on Euronext Growth Paris, with lnvest Securities being 
the Listing Sponsor and Liquidity Provider. On November 2, 2020, the Company began trading 
on the OTCQX market in New York. 

f) Effect of the conflict in Ukraine 

Since February 2022, a conflict has erupted in Europe between the nations of Russia and 
Ukrnine. In this regard, it is important to consider the possible effects on the economy in general 
and on the Group in particular that this conflict may have. The Board of Directors of the Parent 
Company believes that the main effect this situation has had on the Company's figures has been 
the increase in electricity prices in 2022 and 2023. Additionally, wh ile the Board of Directors 
of the Parent Company does not believe there is a risk to the continuity of its operations as of 
June 30, 2024, it must remain vigilant regarding the developments and their economic effects 
in the assessment of future estimates, whose effects wou ld be recorded prospectively. 

1.1) Group Companies 

The Parent Company holds, directly, investments in different national and international 
companies, and controls, directly, these companies. On January l 51, 2016 the first consolidation 
of the Group Companies was carried out. 
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Group Companies included in the Consolidation Perimeter 

The breakdown of the Group Companies included in the consolidation peri meter as of June 30, 
2024 is the following: 

Pcrccntagc Applied Mcthod of 

ofl:Iolding Consolidation 

Group Llcidanctworks Scrveis Tclcmiltics, S.A. 
which maintains !he fo llowing investments: 
Lleidanelworks Serveis Telemillics, LTD 100% Global integration 

Lleidanet USA lnc 100% Global integration 

Lleidanel Honduras, SA 70% Global integration 

Lleidanel Dominicana, SRL 99,98% Global integralion 

Lleida SAS 100% Global integralion 

Lleida Chile SPA 100% Global integration 

Lleidanel do Brasil Ltda 99,99% Global integration 

Lleidanel Guatemala 80% Global integration 

Portabilidades Espafiolas, S.L.U. 100% Global inlegration 

Lleidanet Costa Rica 100% Global inlegration 

Lleiclanel Perú 100% Global integration 

Lleida lnfonnation Teclmology Network Services 49% Global integration 

Lleidanet PKI S.L. 100% Global integralion 

Lleiclanel Tndia 25% Equity rnethod 

The fmancial year of the Parent Company and the Subsidiaries begins on 1st of January and 
ends on 31 st of December of each year. The last Annual Accounts of the Parent Company and 
its Subsidiaries drawn up correspond to the financia! year ended on December 31, 2023. 

Detail of activities and registered office of the Subsidiaries included in the perimeter of 
consolidation as of June 30, 2024, is indicated below: 

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, L TD 

lncorporated on December 28, 2005 in Dublin, with its registered office in B irchin Court 20, 
Birchin Lane London (United Kingdom). Its main activity is as operator. 

Lleidanet USA Inc. 

lncorporated on May 12, 2009 and its registered office is at 2719 Hollywood Boulevard Street 
2 1 FL33020, Hollywood. lts main activity is as operator. On June 30, 2013 a capital increase 
was made in Lleidanet USA !ne. for 397 .515,00 euros which Lleidanetworks Serveis 
Telematics, S.A. subscribed in entirely. 

Lleidanet Honduras, S.A. 

Its registered office in Tegucigalpa (Honduras), it was incorporated on January 11, 2012 
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 175 shares out of a total amount of 250 
that were issued. lts main activity consists on being SMS operator, based on an interconnection 
network with the fixed and mobile operations of the Republ ic of Honduras. 
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Lleidanet Dominicana, S.R.L. 

Headquartered in Tetelo Vargas Street 12, Santo Domingo (Dominican Republic), was 
incorporated on June 26, 20 J 2 subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4.999 
shares of a total of 5.000 that were issued. lts main activ ity is based on the dissemination of 
telematics systems. On 28 December 2020, an increase in capital of 14.000 new shares 
subscribed in full by Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. was approved. 

Lleida SAS 

With its registered office in Calle 70 11°4, Bogotá (Colombia), it was incorporated on November 
16, 201 2 subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serve is Telematics, S.A., 100 shares out of a total of 100 
that were issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems. On June 
15,2018 a capital increase was carried out in Lleida, SAS for an amount of 95.802 euros which 
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. subscribed in fo il. On 30 December 2020, a capital 
increase was carried out in Lleida SAS in the arnount of 48.000 euros, subscribed in full by 
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telernatics, S.A. 

Lleida Chile SPA 

With its registered office in Santiago (Chi le), it was incorporated on March 12, 2013, 
subscribing, Lle idanetworks Serveis Telematics, SA, 200 shares out of a total of 200 that were 
issued. lts main activity is based on the provision, organization and comrnercialization of 
telecornmunications services. 

Lleida Networks India Private Limited 

With its registered office in New Delhi (India), it was incorporated on January 7, 2013 
subscribi11g, Lleidanelworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. , 12.500 shares out of a total of 50.000 
that were issued. Its main activity is the creation of a telecommunications operator in India, as 
well as offering VAS services, including SMS, MMS, a11d UMS and other types of messaging. 

Lleidanet do Brasil Ltda 

With registered office at Rua Tabapua 72, Sao Paulo (Brazil), it was incorporated 011 October 
2, 2013 by subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 329 shares out of a total of 
330 that were issued. lts ma i11 activity is based on the provision of telecommunications services, 
program development, sending of text and emai l messages and the provision of study and 
analysis services of computer processes in general. 

Lleidanet Guatemala, Sociedad Anónima 

With its registered office in Guatemala (Guatemala), it was incorporated 011 November 7, 2013 
subscribing, Lleida11etworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4.800 shares out of a total of 6.000 
issued. Its main activity is the provision, organization and commerciaJization of 
telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging services (SMS and MMS), 
carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information and comrnunication 
tech11ologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these matters. 
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Portabilidades Españolas, S.A. 

Incorporated on December 4, 2015, with registered offíce at Parque Tecnológico de Gardeny 
Edificio 1-I, Lleida, subscribing to Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemátics S.A., 100% of the share 
capital made up of 3.000 shares for a total value of 3.000 euros. Its corporate purpose is the 
marketing of services based on number portability data to telecommunications operators for the 
routing of telephone traffic and short text messages. Tn previous years, a capital increase was 
carried out for an amount of 10.000 euros, fully subscribed by Lleidanetworks Serve is 
Telematics, S.A. 

Lleidanet Costa Rica Empresa Individual de Responsabilidad Limitada 

On March 31, 2016, the Parent Company acquires D. Francisco José Sapena Soler 100% ofthis 
Company for the amount of 16.06 euros. Its main activity is the provision, organization and 
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging 
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information 
and communication technologies and the provision of consu lting and advisory services on these 
matters. 

Lleidanet Perú 

With registered office at Cañon del Pato No. J 03, Lima (Peru). 

On August 25, 2016, the Parent Company made a contribution of 268,09 euros for the 
constitution of said company. lts main activity is based on the provision, organization and 
marketing of telecommunications services and activities such as mobile messaging services 
(SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information and 
communication technologies, and the provision of consulting and advisory services on tbese 
matters. On February 21, 2020, a capital increase was carried out through the capitalization of 
loans held with the Parent Company for an amount of 104.283 euros. On February 21, 2020 
and December 28, 2020, capital increases were carried out to offset credits held with the Parent 
Company for amounts of 104.283 and 33.637 euros respectively. On December 20, 2021, a 
capital increase was carried out to offset credits held with the Parent Company for an amount 
of 44.309,84 euros. 

Lleida Information Technology Network Services 

On October 1, 2020, the Company establishes the company in the United Arab Emirates 
together with the partner Ad il Ismail Ali Al Fahem, witb a share capital of 300 shares ofwhich 
147 are subscribed by Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemátics, S.A. and that correspond to 49% of 
the capital stock of the incorporated company. 
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Lleidanet PKI, S.L. 

As ofNovember 30, 2021, the Parent Company acquired 100% of the shares of Lleidanet PKI, 
S.L.U. (formerly Indenova S.L.), located at Calle Traginers, 14 - 2° B, Valencia, for a cost of 
7.100.000,00 euros. 

NOTE 2. PRESENTATION BASIS OF INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

a) True and Fair View 

The accompanying lnterim Consolidated Financia! Statements as of June 30, 2024 have been 
prepared on the basis of the accounting records ofthe various companies comprising the Group, 
whose respective Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with prevailing mercantile 
legislation and the rules established in the General Accounting Plan approved by Royal Decree 
1514/2007, of l 6 November, applying the amendments made thereto by Royal Decree 
1159/20 l O, of 17 September, and Royal Decree 602/2016, of 2 December and Royal Decree 
1 /2021, of 12 January, in the case of Spanish companies, and in accordance with the regulations 
applicable in the other countries where the companies comprising the Consolidated Group are 
located, and are presented in accordance with the provisions of Royal Decree 1159/20 l O of 17 
September, in arder to give a true and fair view of the consolidated net worth, financia] position 
and results, as well as the veracity of the flows included in the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement. 

b) Presentation Currency 

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations on accounting, the lnterim Consolidated 
Financia] Statements are expressed in euros. 

e) Critica( Aspects of Uncertainties Valuation and Estimation 

1n the preparation of the attached consolidated interim financia ! statements, estimates made by 
the Board ofDirectors ofthe Parent Company have been used to assess certain assets, liabilities, 
revenues, and expenses recorded therein. The estimates and criteria refer to: 

Reasonableness ofthe activation and recoverabi lity of research projects. 

Reasonableness of the recording and recoverability of the consolidated goodwill arising 
from the acquisition of Lleidanet PKl, S.L. 

Althougb these estimates have been rnade based on the best information available at the end of 
the six-month period ending June 30, 2024, it is possible that future events may necessitate 
modifications (upward or downward) in subsequent periods, which would be carried out 
prospectively, recogniz ing the effects of the change in estimate in the corresponding income 
statement. 
The Board of Directors of the Parent Company believes that there are no significant 
uncertainties or aspects regarding the future that could pose a significant risk leading to 
substantial changes in the value of assets and liabilities for the next reporting period. 
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d) Comparison of the Information 

In accordance with commercial legislation, the Board of Directors presents, for comparative 
purposes with each of the balance sheet items, in addition to the figures for the six months ended 
30 June 2024, the figures for the previous year. It also presents, for comparative purposes with 
each of the items in the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement, in addition to the figures for the six months ended 
30 June 2024, the figures for the six months ended 30 June 2023. The items for both years are 
comparable and homogeneous. 

e) Responsibility for the lnformation given and the Estimates made 

For the preparation of the consolidated interim financia! statements, estimates have been used 
to value sorne of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and comrnitrnents recorded therein, 
and these estimates basically refer to the evaluation of losses due to deterioration of certain 
assets, the useful life of non-current assets and the probability of occurrence of provisions (see 
section e). 

ln November 2021, after the acquisition of the cornpany Lleidanet PKl, S.L., goodwill of 4,7 
million euros was generated. Lleidanet PKI's main assets are its intangible assets, as reflected 
in its balance sheet. Lleidanet PKI has a recognized brand image both nationally and 
internationally, and a base of recurring clients who value its services. Its R&D developrnents 
will allow new uses of its services, not only for its customer base, but will also be a 
differentiating elernent in the Group's R&D strategy. They have key personnel, who will rernain 
within the Lleida.net Group and will be rnembers of the rnanagement committee and will help 
meet the objectives set by the Board of Directors of the Group's Parent Company. With the 
acquisition of Lleidanet PKI, sales synergies are achieved, given that Lleidanet PKI and the rest 
of the Group companies have very few shared clients. Lleidanet PKJ will be a ble to increase its 
sales by selling its products to Lleida.net clients. 

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has carried out the anal y sis of the recoverability 
of the consolidation goodwill mentioned above, for which cash flows based on sales projections 
for the period 2024-2028 have been used. According to Management, these projections are 
based on the budget for 2024, the degree of compliance thereof at the date of formulation of 
these Interim Consolidated Financial Statements and the best expectations of Management for 
the business until 2028 for the corresponding analysis of possible deteriorations to June 30, 
2024. Sales growth of 61 %, 14%, 12%, 10% and 8% respectively has been estimated for each 
of the successive 5 years. Likewise, cash flows have been discounted using the average cost of 
resources after taxes. The discount rate used was 17% and a perpetua! income of 2,5% was 
estimated. 

Dueto the abo ve, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company has not considered it necessary 
to record any impairment of value for said goodwill based on the expectations of positive cash 
flow generation expected for the coming years by said company participated. 

Although these estimates were made based on the best information available at the date of 
preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements, it is possible that events that could 
take place in the future may require them to be modified in future years. In such case, this would 
be done prospectively, recognizing the effects of the change in estimate in the corresponding 
consolidated profit and loss accounts. 
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f) Changes in accounting criteria 

No changes in accounting policies have been made. 

g) Correction of Errors 

The Interim Consolidated Financia! Statements for the period ended as of June 30, 2024 do not 
include related adjustments as a result of errors detectecl in previous years' annual accounts or 
financia! statements. 

h) Fair value 

It is the price that would be recejvecl to sell an asset or paicl to transfer or settle a liability in an 
orderly transaction between mark:et participants at the measurement date. The fa ir va lue shall 
be determined without any deduction for transaction costs that might be incurred dueto disposal 
or disposition by other means. In no case shall the fair value result from a forced or urgent 
transaction or beca use of an involuntary liquidation situation. 

Fair value is estimated for a particular date and because mark:et conditions may change over 
time, that value may be inappropriate for another date. In addition, in estimating fair value, an 
enterprise shou ld consider the conditions of the asset or liability that mark:et participants would 
take into account in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

ln estimating fair value, it is assumed that the transaction to sel! the asset or transfer the liability 
is carried out: 

a) Between interested and duly informed parties, in an arm's length transaction, 

b) In the main market of the asset or liabi lity, understood as the market with the highest 
vol u me and leve) of activity, or 

c) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous mark:et to which the 
company has access for the asset or liabi lity, understood as the one that maximizes the 
amount that would be received for the sale of the asset or minimizes the amount that 
wou ld be paid for the transfer of the liability, after taking into account transaction costs 
and transportation expenses. 

In general, fair value is calcu lated by reference to a reliable market value. 

For those items for which there is no active market, the fair value will be obtained, where 
appropriate, through the application of valuation models and techniques. 

The fair value of a financia! instrument must consider, among other things, the credit risk and, 
in the spec ific case of a financia! liability, the company's default risk, which includes, among 
other components, its own credit risk. However, no adjustments for volume or market capacity 
should be made to estimate the fai r value. 
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NOTE 3. RECOGNITION AND VALUATION STANDARDS 

The principal valuation standards used by the Group in the drafting of its lnterim Consol idated 
Financia! Statements on June 30, 2024, in accordance with those establi shed by the General 
Accounting Plan, were as fo llows: 

a) Consolidation Principies 

The consolidation of the Financia! Statements of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. 
with the Financia! Statements of its investee companies mentioned in Notes 1.1 and 2, was 
carried out using the following methods: 

1. Application ofthe globa l integration method for ali Group companies, i.e. those over which 
it as effective control. 

2. Appl ication of the equ ity method as equivalence for assoc iated companies, i .e. those over 
which a notable influence is exercised in terms of management but in which there is no 
majority vote or joint management with third parties. 

The conso lidation of the operations ofLleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. with those of 
the aforementioned subsidiaries was performed according to the fo llowing basic principies: 

- The criteria used in formulation of the Balance Sheets, the Profit and Loss Account and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash-Flow Statements for each one of the consolidated 
companies are, generally, and in their basic aspects, homogenous. 

- The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow 
include ali adjustments and eliminations of the consolidation process, as wel I as relevant 
valuation homogenizations to reconci le balances and transactions between the consolidating 
compan ies. 

Balances and transactions between consol idated companies were eliminated in the 
conso lidation process. The credits and debts with group, affi liated and associated companies 
which have been excluded from the consolidation are presented in the corresponding 
headings of the assets and liabilities headings of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

- The deletion of Subsidia1y equity investment was conducted by compensating the 
shareholding of the Pare nt Company w ith the proportional pait of the net equity of the 
subsidiaries which is represented by the shareholding on the date of the first consolidation. 
The first consolidation differences were treated as fo llows: 

a) Positive differences which cannot be aJlocated to the equity elements of the 
Subsidiaries were included in the "Consolidation Goodwill" heading of the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The impairment losses must be recognized in the 
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and are irreversible. 

b) Negative differences, obtained as first consolidation, are recognized as reserves fo r the 
year cons idering that the group already existed previously in the d ifferent subgroups 
contributed to the Parent Company. 
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- The consolidated income for the financia! year shows the part that may be attributed to the 
Parent Company, comprised ofthe income obtained by tbe latter plus the corresponding part, 
by virtue of the financia! shareholding, of the income obtained by the invested companies 

- The shareholding value of the minority interests in the equity and the attribution of income 
in the consolidated subsidiaries is presented in the "Minority Interest" headi.ng of the Equity 
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The value breakdown oftbese shareholdings is presented 

in Note 4. 

b) Intangible Fixed Assets 

Assets included in intangible fixed assets are valued by their cost, whether purchase price or 
production cost, reduced by tbe corresponding accumulated amo1tization and losses from any 
impairrnent which, where appropriate, has occurred. 

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful 
life. The amortisation charge for each periocl is recognised in profit or loss. 

Research and Development Costs 

Capitalized research and development costs are specifically individualized for projects and their 
costs are clearly established so they can be spread over time. Similarly, Management the Group 
has substantial grounds for expecting the technical success and the financia! and commercial 
profitability of these projects 

Research and development costs that appear as assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over 
their useful life, atan annual rate of 20%, and always within a period of 5 years. 

As soon as there are reasonable doubts over the technical success or financia! and commercial 
profitability of a project, the values recorded in the asset that apply to it are directly allocatecl 
to the financia! year's losses. 

Computer Applications 

Licenses for cornputer applications purchased from third parties are capitalized on the basis of 
the costs incurred for purchasing. Computer applications are amortized on a straight-line basis 
throughout their useful lives, atan annual rate of 33%. 

Maintenance expenses for computer applications incurred during the financia! year are 
recognized in tbe Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. 

Industrial Property 

Corresponds to the capitalized development expenses for which the relevant patent or similar 
has been obtained, and includes the registration and formalization costs for the industrial 
property, as well as the costs for purchasing the corresponding rights frorn third parties. 
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During ali these years, the Group has been able to develop methods and unique technologies in 
its sector by continuous investment in research and development. The result of this effo1t has 
been the publ ication of patents at European, American and PCT levels, putting in value tbe 
effort developed during these last years. These patents allow the Group to license this 
technology to third parties and protect it against possible copies of other actors in the sector, 
less scrupulous when creating original models. 

e) Tangible Fixed Assets 

Tangible fixed assets are valued by their acquisition price or production cost, net of the 
corresponding accumulated amo1tization and, where appropriate, of the accumulated va lue of 
the recognized allowances for impairment. 

Repair and maintenance expenses incurred during the financia! year are debited in the 
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. Costs for renovating, extending or improving intangible 
fixed assets, representing an increase in capacity, productivity or lengthening of useful life, are 
capital ized as a higher va lue of the corresponding assets, once the book va lues of the replaced 
items have been de-recognized. 

Tangible fixed assets, net of their residual value, where appropriate, are amortized by a straight­
line-basis distribution of the various items that constitute these fixed assets over the years of 
estimated useful life making up the period in which the Group hopes to use them, according to 
the fo llowing table: 

Buildings 
Technical facilities 
Machinery 
Other installations 
Furniture 
Computer equipment 
Transporl equipment elements 
Other tangible fixed assets 

Annua1 
Percentage 

2,50 
8 - 10 

20 - 25 
10 

10 - 15 
25 - 50 

10 
15 

Estimated Years 
Qf Usefnl Li(e 

40 
12,50 - 10 

5-4 
10 

10 - 6,67 
4-2 

JO 
6,67 

The book value of a tangible fixed-asset item is de-recognized in the accounts through its 
alienation or disposal by other means; or where no future economic benefits or profits are 
expected to be obtained for its use, aLienation or disposal by other means. 

The loss or profit resulting from writing-off a tangible fixed-asset item is determined as the 
difference between the net values, where appropriate, of the sales costs resulting from its 
alienation or disposal by other means, where available, and the item's book value, and is 
allocated to the Conso lidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which this 
occurs. 

At the financia! year's closure, the Group, assesses whether there are signs of impainnent in a 
tangible fixed-asset item or any cash-generating unit, in which case the recoverable amounts 
are estimated and the necessary allowances are made. 
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An impairment loss is deemed to have occurred in a tangible fixed-asset item where its book 
value exceeds its recoverable value, this being understood as the higher value between its fair 
value less the sales costs and its value in use. 

Allowances for impairment in the tangible fixed-asset items, as well as their reversals where 
the circumstances producing them cease, are recognized asan expense or income respectively 
in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. 

d) Leases and Other Transactions of a Similar Nature 

Operating-lease expenses incurred during the financia! year are debited in the Consolidated 
Profit and Loss Account. 

e) Financia) Instruments 

A financia! asset is any asset that is: cash, an equity instrument of another company, or involves 
a contractual right to receive cash or another financia! asset (a debt instrument), orto exchange 
financia! assets or liabilities with third parties 011 potentially favourab le tenns. 

The financia! assets used by the Group are classified for valuation purposes in one of the 
fo llowing categories: 

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 
2. Financia! assets at amortised cost. 
3. Financia! assets at fair value with changes in equity. 
4. Financia! assets at cost. 

Financia! instruments issued, incurred or assumed are classified as financia! liabilities, in whole 
or in part, if, based on their economic substance, they create a direct or indirect contractual 
obligation for the Company to deliver cash or another financia] asset, orto exchange financia! 
assets or financia! liabilities with third parties on potentially unfavourable terms. 

The financia! liabilities used by the Group are classified for valuation purposes in one of the 
fo llowing categories: 

l. F inancia! liabilities at amortis~d cost. 
2. Financia! liabilities at fair va lue through profit or loss. 

The Group has no financia! liabi lities at fair value. 

Financia) assets at amortised cost 

A financia! asset is included in this category, even when it is admitted to trading on an organised 
market, if the company holds tbe investment for the purpose of receiving cash fiows from the 
performance of the contract and the contractual terms of the financia! asset give rise, at specified 
dates, to cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 
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Contractual cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding are inherent in an arrangement that is a regular or ordinary loan, 
notwithstanding that the transaction is arranged ata zero or below-market interest rate. 

The following are c lassified in this category: 

a) Trade receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods and the rendering of 
services in the ordinary course of business for which payment is deferred, and 

b) Non-trade receivables: financial assets which, not being equity instruments or derivatives, 
do not arise from trade transactions and whose collections are of a fixed or determinable 
amount. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Shareholders' Eguity 

A financial asset is included in this category when the contractua l terms of the financia l asset 
give rise, at specified dates, to cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding, and it is neither held for trading nor classified as a financial 
asset at amortised cost. Investments in equity instruments for which an irrevocable option is 
exercised at the initial time to present subsequent changes in fair value directly in equity are 
a lso included in this category. 

Financia( liabilities at amortised cost 

The fo llowing are classified in this category: 

a) Trade payables: financial liabilities arising from the purchase of goods and services in 
connection with trading transactions; and • 

b) Non-trade payables: financial liabilities which, not being derivative instruments, do not 
arise from trade transactions, but arise from loans or credits received by the Company. 

The financial assets and liabilities included in this category are initially measured at fair value, 
which is the transaction price and is equal to the fair value of the consideration given plus 
directly attributable transaction costs. 

Notwithstanding the above, trade receivables and payables maturing in less than one year that 
do not bear contractual interest rates, as well as, where applicable, advances and loans to 
employees, dividends receivable and payments required on equity instruments, the amount of 
which is expected to be received in the short term, and payments required by third parties on 
equity investments, the amount of which is expected to be paid in the short term, are measured 
at nominal value when the effect of not discounting cash flows is not material. 

In subsequent valuations, both assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Accrued 
interest is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective interest method. 
Notwithstanding the above, receivables and payables maturing within one year that were 
initially measured at nominal value continue to be measured at nominal value, unless, in the 
case of receivables, they are impaired. 



lnterim Consolidated Financia! State111e11/s o/Group lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. and Subsidiaries 
/or Jhe six-111011/h period ended on ./une 30, 2024-___ _ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ___ ~20 

At least at year-end, the necessary impairment losses are recognised whenever there is objective 
evidence that a financia! asset, or a group of financia] assets with s imilar risk characteristics 
measured collectively, is impaired as a result of one or more events that occurred after its initial 
recognition and that cause a reduction or delay in the estimated future cash flows, which may 
be caused by the insolvency of the debtor. 

As indicated in note 11.1) the main credit risk arises from trade balances, with potential 
impairments being estimated 011 a custorner-by-customer basis. 

The amount of the valuation adjustrnent is the difference between the carrying amount of the 
asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows. 

The estimated future cash flows of a debt instrumentare ali the amounts, principal and interest, 
that the company estimates it wi ll earn over the life of the instrument. The estímate considers 
ali relevant information available at the date of the interim financia! statements that provides 
information about the collectabi lity of future contractual cash flows. 

When instruments are secured by collateral and personal guarantees, the cash flows that would 
be realised, less the amount of costs required to obtain and subsequently sel! the col lateral, are 
included, regardless of the likelihood of realisation. 

ln calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows, the original effective interest 
rate of the financia] asset is used as the discount rate. 

The recognition of interest 0 11 credit-impaired financia! assets shall follow the general. rules, 
without prejudice to the simultaneous assessment by the company of whether the amount will 
be recoverable and, if so, the recognition of the corresponding impairment loss. 

The impairment loss so calculated shall be recognised in the profit and loss account. 

lf, in subsequent periods, the arnount of the impairment loss decreases, the previously 
recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. The reversa! shall not result in a carrying amount 
of the financia! asset that exceeds the amortised cost that would have been recognised at the 
date of reversa! had no impairment loss been recognised. The amount of the reversa! shall be 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Own Eguity Instruments 

An equity instrument is any legal arrangement that evidences, or reflects, a residual interest in 
the assets of the issuing enterprise after deducting ali of its liabilities. 

In the event that the company enters into any transaction with its own equity instruments, the 
amount of these instruments shall be recorded in equity as a change in equity, and in no case 
may they be recognised as financia ! assets of the company and no profit or loss shall be recorded 
in the profit and loss account. 

Expenses arising from these transactions, including the costs of issuing these instruments, such 
as lawyers', notaries' and registrars' fees; printing of reports, bulletins and securities; taxes; 
advertising; commissions and other placement expenses, shall be recorded directly in equity as 
a reduction in reserves . 
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Derecognition of Financia} Assets 

A financia! asset, or part of a financia! asset, is derecognised when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the financia! asset expire or have been transferred , and the risks and rewards 
of ownership have been substantially transferred. 

Derecognition of Financia} Lia bilities 

A financia! liability is derecognised when the related obligation is extinguished. 

Interest and Dividends Received 011 Financial Assets 

Interest and dividends on financia! assets accrued after the time of acquisition shall be 
recognised as income in the profít and loss account. 

Interest on financia! assets measured at amortised cost shall be recognised using the effective 
interest method and dividends when the member's right to receive them is declared. 

For this purpose, on initial measmement of financia! assets, the amount of explicit interest 
accrued but not yet due at that time and the amount of dividends declared by the competent 
body at the time of acquis ition shall be recognised separately on a maturi ty basis. 

"Explicit interest'' shall be understood to be that which is obtained by applying the contractua l 
interest rate of the financia! instrument. In addition, if the dividends distributed unequivocally 
arise from profits generated prior to the acquis ition date beca use amounts in excess of the profits 
generated by the investee since acquisition have been distributed, they are not recognised as 
income and reduce the carrying amount of the investment. 

Deposits Given and Received 

For deposits given or received under operating leases or for the provision of services, the 
difference between the fair va lue of the deposit and the amount paid (for example, because the 
deposit is long-term and is not interest-bearing) is treated as an advance payment or collection 
for the lease or provision of the service, and shall be taken to profit or loss over the period of 
the lease in accordance with paragraph 2 of the standard on leases and simi lar transactions or 
over the period in which the service is rendered in accordance with the standard on revenue 
from sales and services. 

f) Transactions in Foreign Currencies 

Transactions in fo reign currencies are recognized by their exchange value in Euros, by using 
the spot exchange-rate for the dates on which they occur. 

On the clase of each financia! year, monetary items are va lued by applying the average spot 
exchange-rate on that date. Exchange differences, both positive and negative, which result from 
this process, as well as those generated on selling off equity items, are recognized in the 
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financia! year in which they arise. 
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g) Profit Tax 

Profit tax is recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the 
Consolidated Equity depending on where the gains or losses giving rise to it are recognized. 
Profit tax for each financia! year includes both current and deferred taxes, where appropriate. 

The current tax amount is the sum to be paid by the companies as a result of the assessment 
notices for the tax. 

Differences between the book value of assets and liabi lities, and their tax base, generate the 
deferred tax asset or liabi lity tax balances which are calculated using the expected tax rates at 
the time of their reversa!, and under the method in which it can be reasonably expected to 
recover or pay the asset or liabi lity. 

Variations arising during tbe financia! year in deferred tax asset or liability are recognized either 
in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the Consolidated Equity, as 

appropriate. 

Defet'l'ed tax assets are only recognized insofar as it is probable that the Group will have future 
tax gains that allow these assets to be applied. 

In each closing balance sheet the book val ue of the recogn ized deferred tax as sets is analyzed 
and the necessary adjustments are made insofar as there are doubts over thei r future tax 
recoverability. Likewise, in each closing non-recognized deferred taxes are assessed in the 
balance sheet and these are subject to recognition to the extent that their recovery with future 
tax benefits is probable. 

h) Income 

An entity shal I recognise revenue in the ordinary course of business when control of the goods 
or services committed to customers is transferred. At that time, the enterprise shall measure 
revenue at the amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. 

In arder to apply this fundamental approach to revenue recognition, tbe Company follows a 
comprehensive process consisting of the following successive steps: 

a) Identify the contract(s) with the customer, understood as an agreement between two or 
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations for the parties. 

b) ldentify the obligation(s) to be fulfilled in the contract, representing commitments to 
transfer goods or provide services to a customer. 

e) Determine the transaction price, or contract consideration, to wh ich the firm expects to 
be entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods or provision of services committed to the 
customer. 
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d) Allocate the transaction price to the obligations to be performed on the basis of the 
individual selling prices of each separate good or service committed to in the contract or, 
where appropriate, on the bas is of an estimate of tbe selling price when tbe sell ing price 
is not independently observable. 

e) Recognise revenue when (as) the company satisfies a committed obligation through the 
transfer of a good or the rendering of a service; such satisfaction occurs when the 
customer obtains control ofthat good or servi ce, so that the amount of revenue recognised 
is the amount allocated to the contractual obligation satisfied. 

For each obligation to be fulfil led (delivery of goods or provision of services) identified, the 
Company determines at the beginning of the contract whether the commitment undertaken is 
fu lfilled over time or ata specific po int in time. As specified in note 15, the invoicing issued by 
the Company is based on customer consumption of each product. 

Fulfilment of the obligation ata specific point in time 

In cases where the transfer of control over the asset does not occur over time, the Company 
recognises revenue using the criteria established for obligations that are discbarged ata point 
in time. To identify the specific point in time at which the customer obtains control of the asset 
(generally an asset), the Company considers, among others, the fo llowing indicators: 

a) The customer assumes the s ignificant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. In 
assessing this, the Company excludes any risk that g ives rise to a separate obligation 
other than a commitment to transfer the asset. 

b) The Company has transferred physical possession of the asset. 

c) The customer has received (accepted) tbe asset in accordance with the contractual 
specifications. 

d) Tbe company has a collection right for transferring the asset. 

e) The customer has ownership of the asset. 

Valuation 

Revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services is measured at the monetary 
amount or, where appropriate, the fair value of the cons ideration received or expected to be 
received, which, in the absence of ev idence to the contrary, is the agreed price of the assets to 
be transferred to the customer, less: the amount of any discounts, rebates or other similar items 
that the company may grant; and interest included in the nominal amount of the receivables. 

However, embedded interest on trade receivables maturing in less than one year that do not 
have a contractual interest rate is included when the effect of not discounting cash flows is not 
material. lf appl icable 

Taxes lev ied on the delivery of goods and services that the company must pass on to third 
parties, such as value added tax and excise duties, as wel l as amounts received on behalf of 
third parties, are not part of revenue. 
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Where variable consideration exists, the Company takes into account in the measurement of 
revenue the best estimate ofthe variable consideration if it is highly probable that there will not 
be a signifícant reversa! of the amount of revenue recognised when the unce11ainty associated 
with the consideration is subsequently reso lved. 

i) Provisions and Contingencies 

Debentures existing at the close of the financia! year, resulting from past events which may 
occasion loss in equity for the Group, and whose value and time of cancellation are 
indeterminate, are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as prov isions and are valued 
by the current value of the best possible estimate for the amount necessary to cancel the 
obligation or h·ansfer it to a third party. 

j) Grants, Donations and Legacies 

Non-refundable cap ital grants, as well as donations and legacies, are valued by the fa ir value of 
the amount granted or of the goods received. They are initially allocated directly as income in 
the Consolidated equity and recognized in the Consoli dated Profit and Loss Account in 
propo11ion to the amortization undergone over the period by the assets financed th rough these 
grants, unless these are non-depreciable assets, in which case they will be allocated to the 
earnings of the fi nancia! year in which their alienation or de-recognition takes place. 

Grants intended for cancelling debts are allocated as income for the financia[ year in which the 
cancellation occurs, un less they are received for a specific financing, in which case the 
allocation is made according to the item that is financed. 

Refundable grants are recognized as long-term debt convertible into subsidies until they become 
non-refundable. 

Operation grants are credited to the earnings of tbe financia[ year when they accrue. 

k) Related-Party Transactions 

[n general, items forming the subject matter of a related-party transaction are initially 
recognized by their fa ir value. The subsequent valuation is made in accordance w ith the 
provis ions laid down in the corresponding regulations. 

l) Cash-Flow Statements 

Cash-flow statements use the fo llowing express ions according to the meanings given below: 

Cash and Equivalents : Cash is both cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are 
financia! instruments fonn ing part of the Group's normal cash management, are convertible 
into cash, have initial maturities no greater than three months and are subject to little significant 
risk of change in their value. 

Cash Strearn-flows: inflows and outflows of cash or other equivalent resources, with tbe latter 
being understood as investments having terms under three months, high liquidity and low risk 
of changes in value. 
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Operating Activities: these are the activities that make up the principal source of the Group's 
ordinary income, as wel l as other activities that cannot be classified under investment or 
financing. 

Investment Activities: acquisition, alienation or disposal by other means of long-term assets 
and other investments not included in cash or cash equiva lents. 

Financing Activities: activities that lead to changes in the size and composition of the equity 
and financia! liabilities. 

NOTE 4. MINORITY INTEREST 

The breakdown ofthe value of minority interests in the equity ofthe consolidated subsidiaries 
as of June 30, 2024 is as follows, in Euros: 

Lleidanel Guatemala 
Lleidanel Honduras 
Lleidanel Brasil 
Lleidanel República Dominicana 
Lleida lnfonnal ion Technology Network 
Services 

Pcrcen tage of 
minority 
intcrcsls 

shnreholdcrs 
(holdingV 

20% 
30% 

0,01% 
0,02% 

51% 

Equity 

4.042,50 

( 40 .836,33) 
2.297,3 1 

(260.249,3 1) 

Others 

(433,82) 

5.0 18,36 
2.242,65 

( 137,83) 

Total Minority 
Pcriod res u lis intercsts 

721,74 

(6.160,24) (4,20) 
6.314,43 2, 17 

(51.363,47) (158.992,81) 

(158.273,1 O) 

The breakdown of the value of minority interests in the equity of the consolidated subsid iaries 
at the year end 2023 was as follows, in Euros: 

Gro11Jl Company 

Lleidanet Guatemala 
Lleidanet Honduras 
Lleidanet Brasil 
Lleidanet República Dominicana 
Lleida lnformation Technology 
Network Services (*) 

Pcrccntagc of 
minority 
interests 

sha reholders 
(holdings) 

20% 
30% 

0,01% 
0,02% 

51% 

Eg_uity 

4.042,50 

(42.849, 13) 
(7.703,67) 

( 176.699,76) 

Others 

(263,84) 

619, 11 
2.440,44 

11.553,95 

Total Minority 
Pel'iod results intcrests 

755,73 

777,39 (4, 15) 
10.000,98 0,95 

(83.549,55) (126.834,63) 

(126.082, 1 O) 
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NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

The detail and movement of Intangible Fixed Assets fo r the six-montb period ended as of June 
30, 2024 is as follows, in euros: 

Cost: 
Goodwill 0 11 consolidation 
Research 
Industrial Properly 
Computer applications 
Advances for intangible fixed assets 

Accumulated amortization: 
Gooclwill 0 11 consolidation 
Research 
Industrial Property 
Computer applications 

Impairment: 
Goodwill 0 11 consoliclation 

fotangiblc Fixcd Assets, Nct 

3l/L2/2023 

4.688.429,58 
14.386.836,57 

1.320.993,83 
5.568.274, 18 

585.365,90 

26.549.900,0G 

(996.805,65) 
(11.884.766,90) 

(563.082,20) 
(3.378.230,41) 

(16.822.885,16) 

(190 207,60) 

9.536.807,30 

Additions 

227.702, 16 

284.837,46 
39.862,09 

552.401,71 

(223 .655,0 1) 
( 191. 143,14) 
(45.229, 12) 

(478.397,47) 

(938.424,74) 

(386.023,03) 

Transfcrs 

100.895,65 

( 100.895,65) 

30/06/2024 

4.688.429,58 
14.614.538,73 

1.42 1.889,48 
5.853.111,64 

524.332,34 

27. 102.301,77 

( 1.220.460,66) 
( 12.075.9 10,04) 

(608.3 11 ,32) 
(3.856.627,88) 

(L7.761.309,90) 

( 190.207,60) 

9.150.784,27 

The details and changes in intangible fixed assets tbroughout the financia! year 2023 were as 
fol lows, in euros: 

E1tchnnge rate 
31/12/2022 Additions De-Rccognition Trnnsfers ilifferneces Wl.2/2023 

Cost: 
Goodwi II on consolidation 4.688.429,58 4.688.429,58 

Research 13.523.568,79 863.267,78 14.386.836,57 

Industrial Property 1. 159 .207,97 16 1.785,86 1.320.993,83 

Compute, appl ications 5.523.134,47 44.212,83 926,88 5.568.274, 18 

Advances for intangible fixed assets 554.801 ,82 192.349,94 ( 161.785,86) 585.365,90 

25.449.142,63 1.099.830,55 926,88 26.549.900,06 

Accumulated nmortization: 
Goodwill on consolidation (546. 983,45) (449.822,20) (996.805,65) 

Research ( 10.939.065,63) (945.70 1,27) ( 11.884.766,90) 

Industrial Propcrty (475.182,52) (87.899,68) (563.082,20) 

Computer applicntions (2.921 .397,30) (455.906,23) (926,88) (3.378.230,41) 

(14.882.628,90) (1.939.329,38) (926,88) (16.822.885, 16) 

lmpairmenl: 
Goodwill on consolidation ( 190.207,60) ( 190.207,60) 

Intangible Fixed Asscts, Net 10.376.306,13 (839.498,83) 9.536.807,30 

The additions for tbe current fiscal year, as well as those from the previous year, primarily 

correspond to the R&D developments that the Company has undertaken in its SaaS product 

lines, as well as the investments made in patents to register the methodology of these new 

products. 
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Goodwill 

On November 30, 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the shares in the company Lle idanet PK.l, 
S.L. for a cost of 7.100.000,00 euros. 

ln fisca l year 2022, the Company impaired consolidation goodwill rn the amount of 190 
thousand euros (see note 2.e and Note 21 ). 

Said goodwill is amortized linearly overa period of 1 O years. 

Fully-amortized ancl in-use items 

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets wh ich were fully-amortised and in 
use as of June 30, 2024 and at December 31, 2023, is the fo llowing, stating their cost values in 
Euros: 

Research 
Patents 
Computer applications 

NOTE 6. TANGIBLE ASSETS 

30/06/2024 
10. 124.956,16 

240.225,63 
2.602.775,77 

12.967.957,56 

31/12/2023 
10.124.956, 16 

196. 149,07 
2.596.805,77 

12.917.911,00 

The detail and changes of tangible fixed assets for year six-month period ended on June 30, 
2024, is the following, in euros: 

Cost: 
Lancl ancl builclings 
Teclmical installations ancl 
machinery 
Other installations, tools ancl 
furn iture 
Data processing equipment 
Trnnsport elemcnls 

Other tangible fixecl assets 
Aclvances for tangible fixecl 
assets 

Accumulatcd amortization: 
Lancl ancl bu ildings 
Technical installations ancl 
machinery 
Other installations, tools ancl 
furniture 
Data processing equipment 
Transport elements 

Other tangible fixed assets 

TangiblcFixed Asscts, Net 

31/12/2023 

203.095,54 

252.969,45 

311 .367,81 

1.478.469,07 

73.767,59 

4.935,79 

57.380,60 

2.381.985,85 

(59.655,13) 

(211.774,34) 

(331 .663,3 1) 

( 1.228.072,9 1) 
( 11.1 19,07) 

(4.910,85) 

(1.847.195,61) 

534.790,24 

Additions 

3.081,77 

5.832,6 1 

8.914,38 

(2.554,6 1) 

(40.509,87) 

(59.935,21) 

(24,94) 

(103.024,63) 

(94. 1 j 0,25) 

Conversion 
Derceognitions differenccs 

( 1.370,46) 

(1.370,46) 

(1.370,46) 

( 1.870,49) 

(7.648,12) 

(9.518,61) 

40.929,72 

(2.511,62) 
3.213,00 

41.631,10 

32.112,49 

30/06/2024 

203.095,54 

256.05 1,22 

309.497,32 

1.484.30 1 ,68 

66.119,47 

4.935,79 

57.380,60 

2.381.381,62 

(62.209,74) 

(253 .654 ,67) 

(290.733,59) 

( 1.290.519,73) 
(7.906,07) 
(4 935,79) 

(1.909.959,60) 

471.422,02 
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The detai ls and changes 111 tangible fíxed assets throughout the fi nancia! year 2023 were as 

fo llows, in euros: 

Dcrecogniti Conversion 
3 L/12/2022 Additions 0 11S Regulations differenccs 31/12/2023 

Cost: 

Land and buildings 203.095,54 203 .095,54 

Tcchnical installations and machinery 257.392,06 27.690,00 (32.1 12,61) 252.969,45 

Other installations, 699.830,28 (389.930,98) 1.468,5 1 3 11.367,81 
toals nnd fumiture 
Dnta processing equipment 1.031.8 14,06 37.260,24 ( 15.524,83) 423.364,48 1.555,12 1.478.469,07 

Transport elemcnts 66.119,47 6.490,09 l. 158,03 73.767,59 

Other tangible fixcd assels 12.1,16,77 (7.8 10,98) 4.935,79 

Ad vanees for tangible ííxed assets 57.380,60 57.380,60 

2.262.2S9,3 1 131.069,71 (1S.S24,83) 0,00 4.1 81,66 2.381.98S,8S 

Accumulntcd nmortimtion: 

Land nnd buildings (54.5 17,83) (5. 137,30) (59.655, 13) 

Technical installations (255.829,38) ( 1.907,21 ) 45.962,25 (2 11.774,34) 
and machinery 
Other installations, (284 . 159 ,38) (4.098,59) (42.307,60) ( 1.097,75) (33 1.663,32) 
tools and fumiturc 
Data processing equipmenl ( 1.101.06 1,14) ( 133.923,49) 13.905,05 (5.572,2 1) ( 1.42 1,11) ( 1.228.072,90) 

T ransport elemenls (5.382,98) (4.867,56) (868,53) ( 11.11 9,07) 

Other tangible fixcd nssels ( 1 1.387,92) (308,05) 6.785, 12 (4.9 10,85) 

(1.706.9S5,65) (1 50.7S7,62) 13.905,05 (0,00) (3,387,39) (1.847.195,61) 

Tangible Fixed Asscts, Net S55.303,66 (19.687,91) (J.619,78) (0,00) 794,27 534.790,24 

Due to the increase in SaaS sales, investments have been made 111 servers for more storage 
capacity. Investments have also been made in laptops. 

Fully-Amortized and in-Use Items 

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in 
use as of June 30, 2024 and as of December 3 1, 2023, is shown below stating their cost values 
in Euros: 

Technical installations and machinery 
Other faci litiesn and furniture 
Data processing equipment 
Other fixed assets 

30/06/2024 

252.969,45 
264.965,66 
903.940,04 

4.935,79 

t .426.810,94 

31/12/2023 

249.269,45 

263.305,08 
9 16.206,47 

3.087,87 

1.431.868,87 
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NOTE 7. LEASES AND OTHER OPERATIONS OF SIMILAR NATURE 

7.1) Financia! Leases (the Compauy as Lessee) 

The Company has no assets financed by finance leases as of June 30, 2024. 

7.2) OperatingLeases (the Group as Lessee) 

The charge to income for the six months ended on June 30, 2024 and the six months ended on 
June 30, 2023 for operating leases amounted to 95.394,33 euros (155.740,82 euros for the six 
months ended on June 30, 2023). This mainly corresponds to o:ffice rentals and vehicle renta]s. 

The following is the breakdown of the total arnount of the mínimum future payments 
corresponding to the non-cancellable operating Ieases: 

2024 2023 

Up to I year 180.041,43 199.760,42 
Between I and 5 years 129.714,93 135.500,52 
More of 5 years 492.402,45 51 5.807,91 

802.158,81 851.068,85 

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The following is the breakdown ofthe Iong-term financia( assets, in Euros: 

Crcdits and Credits and 
Equity Equity Othcrs Others 

instruments instruments Financia) Assets Financia! Assets 
30/06/2024 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2023 

Financia) assets at amortised cost (Note 8.2) 80.745,08 80.837.16 

Financia) asscts at fair valuc with 
changes in cquity (Note 8.3) 10.497,91 10.497,91 

10.497,91 10.497,91 80.745,08 80.837,16 

The breakdown of the short-term financia ( assets, is as follows, in euros: 

Asscts at fair valuc through 
tite profit and loss: 
Cash or olher liquid assets (Note 8. 1) 

Loans and receivable items (Note 8.2) 

Tota l 

Credits and Others 
Financial Assets 

30/06/2024 

1.079.300,98 

1.079.300,98 

4.637. l52,40 

5. 716.453,38 

Credits and Others 
Financia! Assets 

31/12/2023 

1.017.223,87 

1.017 .223,87 

4.315.003,37 

5.332.227 ,24 



fü1eri111 Consolidaled Financia/ Sialemenls of Group Lleida11elworks Serve is Telemalics, S.A. and Subsidiaries 
for /he six-111011/h period ended 011 J 1111e 30, 2024 __________ _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ 3=0 

8.1) Assets at Fair Value through the Profit and Loss 

Cash and other Eguivalent Liguid Assets 

The detail of these assets as of June 30, 2024 and as of December 3 l, 2023 is as follows, 111 

euros: 

Short-tenn high ly liquid investments 
Curren\ Accounts 
Cash 

Total 

8.2) Financial assets at amortised cost 

Balance as of 
30/06/2024 

1.073.748,49 
5.552,50 

1.079.300,99 

llulance 11s of 
31/12/2023 

170.556,13 
84 1.075,26 

5.592,48 

1.017.223,87 

The composition of loans and receivable items as of June 30, 2024 and as of December 31, 
2023 is at fo llows, in euros: 

Balance as of J0/06/2024 
Long-Tcrm Sbort-Te1in1 L(!Ilg-Term Short-Term 

Loans and ,·cccivables items 
for commercial transactions 

Third party customers 4.435.5 15, 17 3.862.974, 13 

Third party debtors 94.935,29 89.464,46 

Total loans and receivablcs itcms 
for commcrcial transactions 4.530.450,46 3.952.438,59 

Loans and receivablcs for 
non-commercial transactions 

Staff 2. 187,45 174,03 

Short-term deposits (*) 104.5 14,49 362.390,75 

Secmities and deposits 80.745,08 80.837, 16 

Total loans and receivablcs for 
11011-commcrcial transactions 80.745,08 106.701,94 80.837,16 362.564,78 

Total 80.745,08 4.637.152,40 80.837,16 4.315.003,37 

(*) Shorl-lerm deposils have a 111a/11rily l o shor /-/erm and accrue a 111arkel in/eres/ rafe. 

Trade and other receivab.les inc lude impairments dueto insolvency risks, as detailed below: 

Accumulated impairment end of financia! year 2022 

lrnpairment losses on trade receivables 

Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2023 

Impairment losses on trade receivables 

Accumulated impairment as of June 30, 2024 

Amount 

623.486,55 

67.063,55 

690.550,10 

6. 199,40 

696.749,50 
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8.3) Financial assets at fair value with cbanges in eguity 

Corresponds to the investment made by the Group in the company "IBAN Wallet", a global 
platform that links investors and loan applicants, with leading rates for both. The investment 
amounts to 10.197,40 euros and corresponds to 0,38% of the share capital. 

There are no assets as collateral for loans. 

NOTE 9. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Detail of long-term financia( liabilities, is as fo llows, in euros: 

Debts with Cl'edit Others 
liabili ies Total 

30/06/2024 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2023 

financia! liabilitics at 
amortiscd cost (Note 9.1) 3.714.565,65 4.491.564,12 989.522,83 989.522,83 4.704.088,48 5.481.086,95 

Detai I of short-term financia( liabilities, is as follows, in euros: 

Debts with c1•edit 
institutions 

Others 
Jiabilities Total 

30/06/2024 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2023 

financial liabilitics at 
amortiscd cost (Note 9.1) 4.263.033,35 4.488.668,55 4.137.364,43 3.534.134,26 8.400.397,78 8.022.802,81 

9.1) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

The breakdown as of June 30, 2024 andas of December 31 , 2023 is as fo llows, in euros: 

For commcrcial transactions: 

Suppliers 
Creditors 
Advances from costumers 

Total balances for commcrcial trnnsactions 

For non-commcrcial opcrations: 

Debts with credit institutions 
Other debts 

Dcbits ami payablc itcms 

Staff (remuneration paya ble) 

Total balances for 
non-commcrcial opcrations 

Total 

Balance as 0[30/06/2024 
Long-Tcrm 

3.7 t 4.565,65 
989.522,83 

4.704.088,48 

4.704.088,48 

4.704.088,48 

Shm·t-Tcrm 

2.810.402,47 
478.099,87 

82.76 1,49 

3.371.263,83 

4.263.033,35 
624.038,3 1 

4.887.071,66 

137.666,77 

5.024. 738,43 

8.396.002,26 

Balance as of31/12/2023 
Long-Tcrm 

4.49 1.564,12 
989.522,83 

S.481.086,9S 

S.481.086,95 

5.481.086,9S 

Short-Tcm1 

1.987.124,34 
375.595,06 
2 75.3 17,82 

2.638.037,22 

4.488.668,55 
868.628,26 

S.3S7.296,81 

27.468,78 

S.384.76S,S9 

8.022.802,8 1 
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9 .1. 1) Debts with credit institutions 

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions as of June 30, 2024 is as fo llows, in euros: 

Loans 
Credit policies 
Advanced billing 

A ShoJ·t-Term 

l.63 1.369,89 
2.348.643,68 

283.0 19,78 

4.263.033,35 

A Long-Term 

3.714.565,65 

3.714.565,65 

5.345.935,54 
2.348.643,68 

283.01 9,78 

7.977.599,00 

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions as ofDecember 31, 2023 is as follows, in euros: 

Loans 
Credi! policies 

Advanced billing 

A Short-Term 

1.926.2 16, 15 
2.413. 155,09 

149.297,3 1 

4.488.668,55 

A Loug-Term 

4.491.564, 12 

4.491.564,12 

Total 

6.417.780,27 
2 .413.155,09 

149.297,3 1 

8.980.232,67 

The detail of the bank loans as of June 30, 2024, expressed in Euros, is the following: 

Last Amount Pending at 

Loaus Maturi!)'. Grantcd Closure 

Loan 24 (*) 15/ 10/2025 78.375,60 18.807,60 

Loan 45 30/04/2025 400.000,00 85.322,64 

Loan 46 22/04/2025 400.000,00 85.455,92 

Loan 47 08/04/2025 400.000,00 85.522,88 

Loan 48 3 1/03/2026 500.000,00 177.1 35,80 

Loan 49 09/07/2028 1.200.000,00 705.607,21 

Loan 50 3 1/07/2028 3.200.000,00 1.887.045,98 

Loan 5 1 09/10/2027 1.250.000,00 706.456,03 

Loan 52 01/02/2028 400.000,00 247.430,45 

Loan 53 18/09/2029 700.000,00 543. 106,52 

Loan 54 02/05/2028 330.000,00 265. 128,21 

Loan 56 04/06/2024 150.000,00 77.059,67 

Loan 57 04/06/2028 250.000,00 169.849,66 

Loan 58 24/03/2026 220.000,00 98.688,19 

Loan 59 19/05/2028 200.000,00 160.965,56 

Loan 60 15/07/2024 90.000,00 30.000,00 

Loan 6 1 O 1/07/2024 2.353,22 2.353,22 

9.770.728,82 5.345.935,54 

(*) lt corresponds lo a loan granled by !he CDT! 
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T he detail of the bank loans as of December 3 1, 2023, expressed in Euros, is the fo llowing: 

Loans Last malurity Amount Grantecl Pcncling ut closure 

Loan 24 (*) 15/10/2025 78.375,60 23.771,60 
Loan 41 29/03/2024 250.000,00 13.086,82 
Loan 42 12/04/2024 400.000,00 27.768,64 
Loan 43 03/05/2024 300.000,00 26.100,64 
Loan 44 04/06/2024 250.000,00 26. 138,41 
Loan 45 30/04/2025 400.000,00 136.006,99 
Loan 46 22/04/2025 400.000,00 136. 185,67 
Loan 47 08/04/2025 400.000,00 136.275,27 
Loan 48 31/03/2026 500.000,00 227.320,71 
Loan 49 09/07/2028 1 .200.000,00 790.924,37 
Loan 50 31/07/2028 3.200.000,00 2. 11 4.167,8 1 
Loan 51 09/10/2027 1.250.000,00 809.81 o, 19 
Loan 52 01/02/2028 400.000,00 280.439,20 
Loan 53 18/09/2029 700.000,00 587.580,81 
Loan 54 02/05/2028 330.000,00 295.4 13,56 
Loan 55 14/02/2024 260.000,00 162. 174,31 
Loan 56 04/06/2024 150.000,00 95.672,12 
Loan 57 04/06/2028 250.000,00 190.167,68 
Loan 58 24/03/2026 220.000,00 126.179,06 
Loan 59 19/05/2028 200.000,00 179.263,07 
Loan 60 15/0 1/2024 100.000,00 33.333,34 

11.238.375,60 6.41 7.780,27 

(*) lt corresponds lo a loan granled by the CDTI 

Credit Lines 

As of June 30, 2024, the Group has cred it policies granted with a total limit amounting to 
2.5 11.1 50,00 euros (2.598.000,00 euros at the end of the previous year), which amount drawn 
at the aforementioned date is 2.348.643,68 euros (2.413. 155,92 euros at the end of the previous 
year). 

Lines of Effects and Import Advances 

As of June 30, 2024, the Group has discount poli cies granted with a total limit amounting to 
750.000 euros (500.000,00 euros at the end ofthe prev ious year), as of that date, no amount has 
been drawn (149.297,3 1 at the end of the previous year). 

9.1.2) Other Financia! Liabilities 

Deferred payment for the acguisition of Lleidanet PKI S.L.U. 

On November 30, 2021, the Company has acquired 1 00% of the shares in the company 
Lleidanet PKl, S.L.U. (previously fndenova, S.L.) fo r a price of7. J 00.000 euros. The first three 
payments have been made for a total amount of 5.606.838,67 euros, with the remaining amount 
of 1.493.16 1,33 euros being deferred, wh ich are pending payment as of June 30, 2024. A 
payment schedule has been established, dated November 30, 2024, and 2025 in cash (of which 
payments corresponding to November 2024, and 2025 are pending) and another payment 
schedule dated November 30, 2024 and 2025 consisting of a fixed amount which wi ll be 
satisfied through the deli very of shares of the Parent Company of the Group (own shares). 
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Other debts 

Other debts mainly comprise one loan held by the Group with the lnstitut Catala de Finances 
(ICF), CDTJ and former partners of the company Lleidanet PKI, S.L.U. The detail as of June 
30, 2024 is as fo llows, in euros: 

Last Amount 
Entity maturity grnutcd 

Loan 3 26/03/2024 199. 151,00 
Loan 5 31/12/2023 2 17.000,00 
Loan 6 31/12/2023 290.000,00 
Loan 7 3 1/ 12/2023 162.000,00 

868.151,00 

The detai l at the close of fiscal year 2023 was as fo llows, in euros: 

Entity Last Maturity 

Loan 3 3 1/03/2024 

Loan 4 23/0 1/2024 

Loan 5 3 1/12/2023 

Loan 6 3 1/ 12/2023 

Loan 7 3 1/12/2023 

9.2) Other lnformation related to Financia! Liabilities 

a) Classification by Maturity Date 

Amount granted 

199. 151 ,00 

672.672,92 

217.000,00 

290.000,00 

162.000,00 

1.540.823,92 

Pcndiug 
Al yca r cnd 

25.889,63 
64.97 1,46 
10.548,00 
12.893,3 1 

11 4.302,40 

Peuding 
At year end 

25.889,63 

40.458, 13 

63.568,43 

10.548,00 

12.893,31 

153.357,50 

The breakdown of the maturity dates ofthe liabili ty financia( instruments as of June 30, 2024 
is the fo llowing, in Euros: 

MRturity ycars 

2024 202S 2026 2027 2028 

Fi,rnncial cl cbls: 4.263.033,35 1 .332.992,25 1.176.311,58 1.017.742,S6 187.519,26 

Dcbts with credit 
4.263.033,35 1.332.992,25 1.176.311 ,58 1.0 17.742,56 187.5 19,26 institutions 

Othcr linanciR I 
624.038,31 S03.638,S0 48S.884,33 liabilitics: 

Othcrdebts 120.399,8 1 
Deferred payment 503.638,50 503.638,50 485.884,33 
acquisilion Lleidanet PKI, 
S.L.U. 

Commcrcinl crcclitors 
3.S13.326,12 nnd olhcr pnynble ítcms: 

Suppliers 2.810.402,47 

Sundry crcditors 482.495,39 

Advances from customers 82.761,49 

Staff 137.666,77 

Total 

7.977.S99,00 

7.977.599,00 

1.613.SGJ,14 

120.399,8 1 

1.493.161,33 

3.S13.326,12 

2.810.402,47 

482.495,39 

82.761 ,49 

137.666,77 

Total 8.400.397,78 1.836.630,7S J.J 76.311,S8 1.017.742,S6 673.403,S9 13.104.486,26 
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The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liabil ity fi nancia! instruments at the close of 2023 
is the following, in Euros: 

MRlurily years 

More 
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 OÍ 5 )'CRl'S 

Firrnncial clcbts: 4.488.668,55 1.462.916,90 1.225.979,93 1.148.743,56 565.275,63 88.648,J O 

Debls with creclil institutions 4.488.668,55 1.462.9 16,90 1.225.979,93 1.148.743,56 565.275,63 88.648, I O 

Other fina ncial Iiabilities: 868.628,26 503.638,50 485.884,33 
Other clebts 162.625,04 0,00 
Deferred paymcnt acquisition 
Llcidanel PKI, S.L.U. 706.003,22 503.638,50 

485.884,33 

Commercinl credilors nnd 2.665.506,00 
othcr paynhle ítems: 
Suppliers 1.987.124,34 
Sundry creditors 375.595,06 
Advances from customers 275.317,82 
Staff 27.468,78 

Tolnl 

8.980.232,67 
8.980.232,67 

1.858.151,09 
162.625,04 

1.695 .526,05 

2.665.506,00 

1.987.124,34 
375.595,06 
275.3 17,82 
27.468,78 

Total 8.022.802,81 1.966.555,40 J .225.979,93 I.148.743,56 1.051.159,96 88.648,10 13.503.889,76 

b) Breach of Contractual Obligations 

No incidence has been produced in breach of the obligations relating to the loans received frorn 
third pa1t ies. 

9.3) Guarantees 

The Group has contracted guarantees with severa! financia( institutions for a total amount of 
612.569 euros, a standard instrument when signing an interconnection agreement. 

The Group has no guarantees for loans, except for of Lleidanet PKI, S.L.U., where the former 
shareholders of the company are guarantors for certain loans. 
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NOTE 10. INFORMATION ON THE DEFERMENT OF PAYMENTS MADE TO 
SUPPLIERS. TIDRD ADDITIONAL PROVISION. "DUTY TO INFORM" OF LAW 
15/2010, OF JULY 5 

As indicated in the third additiona l provision ' Duty to infonn ' of Law 15/201 O, of July 5 
(modified by Law 3 1/20 14), to amend Law 3/2004 of December 29, by which are established 
measures to combat late payment in commercial transactions and with regard to the resolution 
January 29, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Audit Statements, about the information 
to incJude in the Notes to the Annual Accounts with regard to the average payment period to 
suppliers in commercial transactions, is as fo Uows: 

Average payment period to suppliers 
Ratio paid operations 
Ratio of outstanding payment transactions 

Total payments 
Total outstanding payments 

Monetary Yolume Paid 
% oftotal payments madc 

Number of in vo ices 
% oftotal invoices 

Payments made and pending payment 011 the 
Closing Date Balance 

Sixth month period Sixth month period 
cnding 011 June 30, 2024 ending on ,Junc 30, 2023 

37,43 
44, 13 
27,02 

31 ,6 1 
34,09 
25,42 

Sixth month 11eriod Sixth month periocl 
cnding on June 30, 2024 cnding on Junc 30, 2023 

Amount Amount 

4.709.101,83 
3.04 1.283,83 

Period 2024 
Amount 

1.399.039,55 
30% 

853 
55% 

5.326.833,98 
2. 133.025,59 

Period 2023 
Amount 

2.466.067,60 
46% 

1.3 14 
62% 

NOTE 11. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE AND LEVEL OF THE RISK FROM 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 

Group activities are exposed to various types of financia) risk, most especia lly credit, liquidi ty 
and market risks (exchange rate, interest rate and other price risks). 

11.1) Credit Risk 

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash balances, trade and other receivables and 
investments, which represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to 
financia l assets. 

The Group's credit risk is attributable mainly to its commercial debts. The amounts are ref1 ected 
in the net balance of provisions for bad debts, estimated by the Parent Company's management 
based on the experience of previous years and its assessment of the cmrent economic 
environment. 



/11/erim Consolidated Financia/ Stalements of Gro11p lleidanelll'orks Serve is Te/emilfics, S.A. and S11bsidiaries 
.for !he six-111011/h periocl ended 011 June 30, 2024 _____ ________________ ~37 

11.2) Liguidity Risk 

The treasury department has a daily overview of the actual cash position and compares it with 
the weekly fo recasts. The Group has ample short-term financia! capacity, as reflected in the 
positive balances on cred it accounts. 

11.3) Market Risk 

The general market situation in recent years has been unfavourable dueto the difficult economic 
environment. 

11.4) Exchange Rate Risk 

The Group's main exchange rate risks are with the US dallar and the Colombian peso. The 
Group does not currently operate exchange rate insurance, although it is a variable that is being 
analysed for the future. The risk is low in the Group, as it has both expenses and revenues in 
these currencies, and therefore uses current accounts in these currencies to be able to match 
foreign currency payments with foreign currency receipts. ln the event of a currency mismatch, 
the Group uses the spot market, always analysing the evolution of the currency one month in 
advance in arder to be a ble to take advantage of the best moment for the exchange. 

11.5) Interest Rate Risk 

Changes in interest rates modify the fair value of assets and liabilities bearing a fixed interest 
rate as well as the future flows of assets and liabi I ities referenced to a variable interest rate. 

The objective of interest rate risk management is to achieve a balance in the debt structure that 
will minimize the cost of debt over the multiannual horizon with a reduced vo latil ity in the 
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. 

NOTE 12. EQUITY 

12.1) Share Capital of Parent Company 

12.1) Share Capital 

As of December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2024, the share capital amounts to 320.998,86 euros 
and is represented by 16.049 .943 registered shares of 0,02 euros nominal each, fully subscribed 
and paid up. These holdings enjoy equal political and economic rights. 

As of June 30, 2024, as well as of December 31, 2023, there are no companies with a director 
indirect stake equal to or greater than 10% of the share capital. 
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Capital Increase 

By virtue of the admission to trading 0 11 BME Growth, the Parent Company carried out the 
following transacti ons in its share capital: 

On June 1, 20 15, a General Shareholders' Meeting resolved to sp lit the shares of the Parent 
Company by reducing the par value of the shares by 60, 1 O euros at a nominal value of 0,02 
euros per share. In this operation, 3.005 shares were generated for each old share, with the 
capital stock being forrned by 11.812.655 shares with a nominal value of each share at 
nominal 0,02 euros each. 

On June l , 2015, it was agreed by the General Shareholders' Meeting to modify the system 
of representation of the shares, transforming the nominative securities representing the 
shares in which the Parent Company's capital is divided into account entries. 

On June 1, 201 5, it was resolved by mea ns of a General Meeting of Shareholders to mod ify 
the transmission regime of the shares of the Parent Company, passing this transfer of shares 
to be free and not subject to consent or authorization by the Company nor by shareholders 

On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Meeting of Sharebolders to request the 
incorporation in the segment of Companies in Expansion of the Alternative Stock Market 
of ali the shares representing the Parent Company. 

On September 30, 201 5, it was agreed to increase tbe Parent Company's Capital Stock by 
84.745,78 euros through the issuance of 4.237.288 shares with a nominal value of 0,02 
euros and an issue premium of l ,16 euros per share. This extension is fully subscribed and 
disbursed. 

12.2) Reserves 

The breakdown for Reserves is as fo llows, in euros : 

Legal Reserve 
Other Reserves 

12.3) Issue Premium 

30/06/2024 

64.199,77 
1.857. 175,09 

1.921.374,86 

3 1/12/2023 

64. 199,77 
3. 167.250,75 

3.231.450,52 

This reserve amounted to 5.244.344,28 euros, of which 329.090,20 euros arose as a result of 
the capital increase carried out in 2007 and 4.915.254,08 euros arose as a result of the capital 
increase carried out in the 2015 exercise for the departure of the Parent Company to the BME 
Growth. It has the same restrictions and can be used for the same purposes as vol untary reserves, 
including their conversion into share capital. 
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12.4) Own Shares 

The Company's Shareholders' Meeti11g agreed on June 1, 2015, to authorize the Board of 
Directors for the derivative acquisition of treasury shares in the terms provided by current 
legislation. These acqu isitions of own shares have been made through the liquidity provider 
GVC Gaesco Valores SV, S.A. At the shareholders' meeting on June 7, 2022, the allocation of 
funds for the treasury stock program is approved. ANDBANK SAU was appo inted as manager 
for the acquisition of the first 500 thousand euros, in order to allocate it to the contractual 
obligations of Lleida.net regarding the acquisition of Lleidanet PIG., through which it was 
agreed to pay part ofthe purchase price deferred in shares ofthe parent company. Subsequently, 
on July 23, 2021, a new allocation of 500 thousand euros more was made, and together, 175.534 
shares were purchased at an average price of 5,53 euros per share. 

On September 29, 202 l , the company changed its liquidity provider, appointing Solventis A.V., 
S.A. in which 30 thousand shares of the former liquidity provider Gaesco were transferred, and 
an additional 150 thousand euros were provided for the management ofthe company's treasury 
stock. 

On January 5, 2024, the first payment in shares for the purchase of the company Lleida.net PK1 
is made, disbursing a total of23 l .853 shares. Likewise, on June 18, 2024, the company appoints 
Solventis A.V., S.A. as the manager of a new treasury stock program for the acquisition of 
shares valued at 100.000 euros. 

As of June 30, 2024, the Company holds treasury shares for an amount of 478.508,03 euros 
(1.448.058, l 8 euros at the end of the previous year) atan average cost price of 1,61 euros per 
share (2,75 euros per share in the previous year). Derived from the sales of shares that have 
been carried out in the current year, there has been a negative impact on the Company's reserves 
in the amount of 767 thousand euros, which is expla ined by the decrease in the trading price 
during 2024. 
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NOTE 13. FOREIGN CURRENCY 

The most significan! foreign currency balances as of June 30, 2024, lotalled u1 euros and broken down into lheir foreign cnrrency equivalen!, are as 

follows: 

Rl!JIQ.S USD CBP COP DOÍ' J!llL Crt, CLP AED GTQ Pf.N 

CURRENT 
ASSE1'S t .561.3J0,6S 2•6.97K,33 4.296.642.'222~"-' <.14M2S,53 358.!iS0,13 •A03.886,0U 18.372,0ll 30,()(MIIOO 925.SH0,50 

TrOOcdcbtors 
1:mdothcr 
occounts 
rccch-oblc 1.191.3!0,13 201A26,SJ 3AU8.1 ll . l99,H 3.066.761,51 18.652,87 I.IOU.330.0U 7.660,00 7-H.<i82.k9 

Cosh 370.020 .• 7 •s.m.Ro 888.530,022.97 1.077.6~.0l 339.'197;26 3.303.556,00 10.712,00 30,000.00 180,11')7,61 

CURRENT 
LIADILITIES 938.900,7• 631.101 .'3 l0.Jll8,00 I.JI0.280,030.S• 603.387,76 3.980,23 39-.f.828,00 ss.1•0,00 83.303,3S 

Trodc crcditors 
ond othcr 
pay;,blc nccounts 938,900,7-1 631.101,53 10.308,00 I.JI0.2800311,H 603.387.76 3.980.23 394.828.00 55,740.00 83.303,35 

T he 1110s1 significan! foreign currency balances as of December 31, 2023, totallecl in emos ancl broken clown into their foreign currency equivalen!, are 

as follows: 

EURO..S USD j;DP COI' DllL -l!OJ' PEN Cl, P GTQ AED 

937.380,73 153.206.06 1,37S,57 2.383,745.722,83 712.123,03 J.600.880,02 IOJ,782,00 4.330.130,00 30,000.00 68.654,07 

CUHllENT ASSETS 

Trodc debtors nnd 01her accou11ts m:ch·nblc 584.600,62 1,18.864,05 1 375,57 1.599.699.444,80 21.109,02 2.8%.327,73 77.396,00 1.060.610,00 19.933,47 

Cnsh 352,780.11 4,Hl,01 784,0-16,278,0J 691.014,01 70-1.552,29 26,386,00 3.269.520,00 30,1100,00 48,720,60 

CURRRNT LIADlt.lTIES 230.022,71 IJ9.302,28 557,94 29S.960.786,18 7.8ll,l9 460.894,80 96.787,00 1.096.136,00 2.373,77 

Ttnde crediton Md 01.hcr p:iyoblc accounls 230.012,71 139.302,28 S57,9-I 295,960.786,18 7,812,19 460.89,1,80 96.787,00 1Jl96.13li,OO 2.373,77 
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The mosl significanl transactions carried out during lhe six-monlh period enclccl June 30, 2024, lotalled in euros ancl broken clown inlo U1e equivalent in 
foreign currcncy, are as follows: 

EUll USll GDP CLl' ()I' oor PEN MXN AED AllD JPY 

Purchasc and 
scn•iccs rl!ccivc,I 

484.692,03 289.653,49 17.379,7(1 500.154,00 293.405.281,29 919.003.38 301.828.IO 175208,52 101.99(\./,8 1.000,00 163.100,00 

Sales nnd scn·iccs 
gi\'Cñ 

1.373.268,ll 372.27 1,9S 844,59 3.692.282.674, 12 1.613.456,77 S31.-193.05 528,38 

The mosl significanl transaclions carriecl out cluring the six-monlh periocl enclecl June 30, 2023, totallecl in euros ancl broken clown into the equivalen! in 
foreign currency, are as follows: 

EUR llSD GBP CLP cor ,Z,1\R DOJJ l'EN PLN MXN ~ED 'ªº AUD JPY 

Purdrnsc o.nd 
s-cr\'iccs rccch·cd 1.5S8.734,00 1.125.362,UU 63.2S(,,25 7.09L212,00 8(,8.629.281,95 29S,13 1.312.529,16 482. 7(,6,54 80.S40,l ,I 343.3 11,13 1.164,49 1.321 1.690.200,00 

S:iles 0.11d scn1iccs 
givcn 2.690.1(,7,32 850.038.80 1.375.57 l .172.273.859,43 2.93(,.279,43 3.107.107,65 4.004,96 4.649,37 
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NOTE 14. TAX SITUATION 

The following is the breakdown of the balances with the Tax Authorities as of June 30, 2024 
and December 31, 2023, in euros: 

30/06/2024 31/12/2023 

Non-cu rren!: 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Deferred tax liabilities 

Curren 1: 
Value Adcled Tax 
Subsidies receivablc (*) 
lncome Tax retenlions 
CompanyTax 
Social Security bodies 

Tax Situation 

Rcceivablc 

640.680,5 1 

640.680,51 

l. 58. 123,74 
1.824,94 

1.085.8 14,00 
484, 16 

1.246.246,84 

Paya ble Receivublc Paya ble: 

595.580,62 

24.196,02 25. 162,2 1 

24.196,02 595.580,62 25.162,21 

405.209,05 32.162,58 296.269,27 
1.089,00 

105.695,87 174.943,25 
3.409,7 1 1. 158.179,03 

11 5.956,32 3.470,00 142.096,02 

630.270,95 1.194.900,61 613.308,54 

In accordance with current legislation, tax payments cannot be considered final until they bave 
been inspected by the tax authorities, or until the statute barring period of four years has passed. 

As of June 30, 2024, the Group has open to tax inspection ali the taxes to which it is subject 
from the financia! year 2019 to the 2024 financia! year. Consequently, as a result of possible 
inspections, additional liabilities could arise to those registered by the Group. However, the 
Directors of the Parent Company and its tax advisors consider that such liabilities, if they occur, 
would not be significant on the financia! statements taken as a whole. 

Profit Tax 

The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the six-month period ended June 
30, 2024 of the Parent Company with the taxable income tax base is as follows: 

----------------'-'P1,..,,·ofit 1\lld Lots ccount 

Financia! ycnr's eamings 
(After taxcs) (six-months) 619.373,29 

/ucreases 

Profit tax 

Permancnl differences 
12.500,00 

Taxable incomc (tax rcsult) 

Tax Losscs 

Taxablc incomc (tax result) 

Decret1ses 

(60.970,36) 

Ne/ effecl 

(60.970,36) 

12.500,00 

570.902,93 

(570.902,93) 

0,00 
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The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses far the six-month period ended June 
30, 2023 of the Parent Company with the taxable income tax base is as fo llows: 

Financia! ycar's carnings 
(Aftcr laxes) (six-months) 

Profil tax 

Pcrmancnt lliffcrcnrcs 

Taxable incomc (tax ,·esult) 

lucre11ses 

100.070,40 

Profit and Loss Account 

Decreases 

(64.786,49) 

(680.835,97) 

Neteffect 

(64.786,49) 

100.070,40 

(645.552,06) 

The fo llowing are the calculations made with regard to the Group Tax to be paid, in Euros: 

2024 2023 
(6 months) (§ months) 

Charge at 25 % of Taxable lncome (161.388,02) 

Deductions 4.452,60 

Net tax payable (l 56.935,42) 

Less: withholdings and payments 15.397,82 

Tax payable 15.397,82 (156.935,42) 

The main components of corporate income tax expense are as follows: 

2024 2023 
(§_ months) (6 months) 

Cunen! tax (5.858,35) 1.566,61 

Deferred tax 60.970,36 64.786,49 

Positive prolit tax adjustments (3.570,42) (759,92) 

Total 51.557,59 65.593,18 

The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during June 30, 2024 is detailed below 
in euros: 

Balance as of Balance as of 
31/12/2023 Generated Cancelled 30/06/2024 

Deferred tax asscts: 
Tax credits 75.271,14 (15.870,47) 59.400,67 

Deduction credits 520.309,48 60.970,36 58 1.279,84 

Total 595.580,62 60.970,36 (l 5.870,47) 640.680,51 
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The rnovement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during financia! year 2023 is detailed 

below in euros: 
Balance at Balaucc at 

31/12/2022 Gcncratcd Canccllcd 31/12/2023 

Dcfcrrcd tax assets: 
Tax credits 71.093,81 4.177,33 75.27 1, 14 

Credits for deductions 403.221,32 11 7.088,17 520.309,49 

Total 474.315,13 121.265,50 595.580,63 

Credits for Tax Losses Carry Forward 

The Group has activated the amount of the credit for tax bases of its investee cornpanies 
Lleidanet Perú, Lleidanet Colombia and Lleidanet República Dominicana, since they comply 
with the requirernents established by current regulations for their registration, and as there are 
no doubts about the capacity of generate future tax profits that allow their recovery. 

As of June 30, 2024, the Group reports the fo llowing negative tax bases pending compensation 
amounting to 1.818.601,91 euros that have not been recognized and correspond to the Parent 
Company and Lleida.net PK.I, S.L.U. 

Deductions Pending Application 

As of June 30, 2024, the Group has the fo llowing deductions to apply: 

Year ofOrigin 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
201 3 
2014 
2015 
20 16 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Amount 

11.288,42 
172.071 ,08 
181.1 64,26 
2 14.961,29 
344. 11 2,78 
428.680,64 
245.346,28 
369.824,03 
188.991,46 
180.537,92 
170.354,09 
163.214,66 
136.418,80 
236.84 1,13 
205.539,80 

64.786,49 
45.099,89 

3.359.233,02 
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NOTE 15. INCOME AND EXPENSES 

a) Income, disaggregation of revenue from ordinary activities 

The distribution ofthe net tu mover corresponding to the Company's ordinary activ ities is shown 
below: 

2024 (6 months) 2023 (§ months) 

Business arcas 
(figures in thousands of euros) Euros % Euros % 

Contracting 1.588 l6,58% 1.622 18,57% 
Notification 1.032 l0,78% 880 10,08% 
Other SaaS 1.513 15,80% 1.705 19,52% 
SMS Solutions 1.765 18,43% 1.664 19,05% 
ICX Wholesale Solutions 3.678 38,4 1% 2.863 32,78% 

Total 9.576 100,00% 8.734 100,00% 

The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities by geographical market is 
shown below: 

2024 (6 monl'hs) 2023 (6 months) 
Gcograpltic marlcct dcsCl'ÍJ)tion 
(thousand euros) % Euros % 

NationaJ 4.546 47,47% 4.680 53,58% 
European Union 3.776 39,43% 1.952 22,35% 
Rest ofthe World 1.254 13,10% 2. 102 24,07% 

Total 9.576 100,00% 8.734 100,00% 

The distribution of revenue from the Company's OJdinary activities, by type of contract, is 
shown below: 

Typc of contract 
(thousancl euros) 

Typc of contrnct 
Fixed price contracts (*) 
Variable contracts (**) 

Total 

2024 (6 months) 

9.282 
294 

9.576 

2023 (6 months) 

5.448 
3.286 

8.734 

(*) The prices ojfered lo c11stomersfor each SaaS product, as we/1 as /he Who/esa/e µrices ojfered i11 a specific period of 
time Jor a desti11alio11 i11 the SMS, are co11sidered fixed prices. Picase 11ote thal ali i11voices issued are based 011 
Cl/SIOIIICr CO/ISl/lllfJIÍOII. 

(**) There are agreeme11ts with customers wlrere tire se/ling price is l'ariable depe11di11g 011 tire 1111111ber of /ra11sac1io11s 
made. 
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The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities, by contract term, is shown 
below: 

Ouring of contra et 
(thousimd euros) 

Duration of contrae! 
Short-term contracts 
Long-lenn contracts 

Total (*) 

2024 (6 months) 

9.576 

9.576 

2023 (6 months) 

8.734 

8.734 

(*) 111e co11tracts sig11ed by l/eida.11et with its c/ie11ts are 11ar111ally for a period of 011e year witl, tacit re11ewa/. We are 1101 
ml'are of a11y c/ients wl,o hove asked 11s to ter111i11ate rhe contract in tl,e jlrs/ yew: 

The distribution ofthe net turnover corresponding to the Company's ordinary activities, by sales 
channels, is shown below: 

Sales channels 
(thousand euros) 

Sales channels 
Distribulors or wholesalers 
Relai/ers (*) 
Direct sales 

Total 

(*) Relai/ers are c11s/0111ers who b11y 011r prod11cts 011/ine. 

2024 
(6 months) 

699 
193 

8.684 

9.576 

2023 
(6 months) 

663 
237 

7.834 

8.734 

There are invoices to be issued, mainly for interconnection customer consumption in June 2024, 
which are invoices issued in July 2024. 

There are no sign ificant payment terms. The usual method of collection is by transfer, either on 
demand or 30 days after the invoice date. 

There are no returns as there is no tangible asset. As for guarantees, they are those inherent to 
the service established by standard contract. 

b) Supplies 

The staff expenses as in the Profit and Loss Account are composed as fo llows, in euros: 

Consumption of mcrchandisc 
Domestics 
Lntra-Community Acquisitions 
lmports 

2024 
(6 months) 

1.658.553,03 
1.756.043,53 
1.118.341,98 

4.532.938,54 

2023 
(6 months) 

1.790.971,27 
1.310.503,26 

639.0 17,93 

3. 740.492,46 
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e) Staff expenses 

The staff expenses as in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account are composed as fo llows, in 
euros: 

Social Security contribut ions 
Other welfare costs 

d) Financia} Results 

2024 
(§_ months) 

579.680, 18 
57.594,52 

637.274,70 

2023 
(6 months) 

679.629,64 
78.229,88 

757.859,52 

This heading in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account is composed as fo llows, in E uros: 

2024 2023 
(§ months) (!ímonths) 

Financia! incomcs 5.592,02 1.266,36 
Other financia! incomes 5.592,02 1.266,36 

Financia! expenses (120.121,48) (67. 184,23) 
For debts with credit institutions ( 120.1 21,48) (67. 184,23) 

Exchange differenccs 
Gains (losses) on disposals and other 

( 13.824,38) ( 10.876, 17) 

Financia! Result Positive / (Negntive) (128.353,84) (76. 794,04) 

NOTE 16. INFORMATION ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

Tbe Group has no assets, nor has it incurred expenses, aimed at minimizing the environmental 
impact and protecting and improving the environment. There are Likewise no provisions for 
risks and expenses and no contingencies relating to protection and improvement of the 
environment. 

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to June 30, 2024, and up to the date of preparation ofthis Management Report, the 
Group has carried out a stock buyback program in its parent company that ended on July 8, 
2024, during which 80.644 shares were acquired ata cost of 99.971 euros. Following this 
program, the percentage of treasury shares of the company increased to 2.34%. 
No additional subsequent events have occurred beyond those already mentioned in the 
explanatory notes of the annual accounts and in the previous point, which wou ld reveal 
circumstances that existed as of June 30, 2024, and that, dueto thei r economic significance, 
should lead to adj ustments in the Financia! Statements or modifications in the infonnation 
contained in the explanatory notes. 
There are also no other subsequent events, different from those already mentioned in the 
explanatory notes, that demonstrate conditions that did not exist as of June 30, 2024, and that 
are of such significance that they would require additiona l information in the explanatory notes 
of the annual accounts. 
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NOTE 18. CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS 

The following is the breakdown as of June 30, 2024 of the Consolidated Earnings in Euros: 

Enrnings Enrniogs 
lntlívidual Attrlbutcd to Attributcd to 

Enrnings of the Pnrcnt Miuority 
Subsidinry Com11nnics Shnrcholding Com¡¡nny lntcrcsts 

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemat ics, 
S.A. 619.373,29 619.373,29 

Lleidanetworks Serveis 
Telematics, L TO (7.840) 100% (7.840) 
Lle idanet USA lnc 5. 107,95 100% 5.1 07,95 

Lleiclanet Honduras, SA 70% 
Lleidanet Dominicana, SRL 6.533,22 99,98% 6.53 1,9 1 1,3 1 

Lleida SAS 28. 129,35 100% 28. 130,0J 

Lle icla Chile SPA (4.940,22) 100% (4.940,22) 

Lleidanet do Brasil Ltcla (6.160,24) 99,99% (6.160,24) (0,62) 

Lle idanel Guatemala 80% 
Po11abiliclacles Españolas, S.A. 100% 
Lle idanel Costa Rica 248,94 100% 248,94 

Lleidanet Perú (23.769,33) 100% (23.769,33) 

Lleida ln fonnation Technology Network 
Services (5 l.363,47) 49% (25.168, 1 O) (26. 195,4 1) 

Lleidanet PKl, S.L. (29.350,58) 100% (29.350,58) 

535.968,91 562.163,63 (26.194,72) 

The fo llowing is the breakdown for financia! of June 30, 2023 of the Consolidated Earnings in 
Euros: 

Individual 
Earnings 

ofthc 
Subsidiary Companics 

Lleiclanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. (680.835,97) 
Lleiclanetworks Serveis Telematics, L TO 25.9 15, 17 
Lleidanet USA lnc 1.838,45 
Lleidanet Honduras, SA 
LLeidanet Dominicana, SRL 1.87 1,91 
Lleida SAS 55. L88, 17 
Lleida Chile SPA ( 1.1 53,41) 
Lleidanet do Brasil Ltda (336,06) 

Lleidanet Guatemala 
Portabilidades Españolas, S.A. 
Lleidanet Costa Rica ( 13,89) 
Lleidanet Perú ( 18.876, 10) 
Lleida lnfonnation Technology Network Services (42.297,23) 
Lleidanet PKl SL (antes lnclenova, S.L.) 22.372,83 
Lleidanel Soulh Africa (604,68) 

(636.930,81) 

Sharcholcling 

100% 
100% 
70% 

99,98% 
100% 
100% 

99,99% 
80% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
49% 
100% 
100% 

Enrnings 
Attrihutcd to 

Parcnt 
Com¡mny 

(680.835,97) 
25.915,97 

1.838,45 

1.876,49 
55.188, 17 
( l.l53,41 ) 

(336,03) 

( 13 ,89) 
( 18.876, 1 O) 
(20.725,64) 

22.372,83 
(604,68) 

(615.353,81) 

Result 
attribu tcd to 

Externa! 
l'artncrs 

(4,58) 

(0,03) 

(21.571 ,59) 

(21.576,20) 
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The adjustrnents made to the Earnings associated to Parent Company as of June 30, 2024 is as 
follows: 

Individual earnings atlributed lo Parent Compa11y 
Consolidation adjustments: 
Goodwill amortisation 

Total 

562.163,59 

(223.654,98) 

338.508,61 

The adjustments rnade to the Earnings associated to Parent Company as of June 30, 2023 was 
as fo llows: 

Individual earnings attributed to Parent Company 
Consolidatio11 aclj ustments: 
Goodwill amortisation 

Total 

NOTE 19. LONG-TERM PROVISIONS 

(615.353,81) 

(223.655,04) 

(839.008,85) 

The group has an ongoing adrninistrative file, and a prov1s10n of 200.000 euros has been 
included in 2023, corresponding to the total proposed sanction, which has been reclassified as 
short-term this year 

NOTE 20. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIBS 

20.1) Balances and Transactions with the Directors of the Parent Company and Senior 
Executives 

The remuneration accrued during the six months ended on June 30, 2024 by the Board of 
Directors of the Parent Company amounted to 49.500,00 euros. In the six-month period ended 
on June 30, 2023, remuneration accrued by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company 
amounted to 63.000,00 euros. 

Senior Management duties are perforrned by three rnembers of the same Board of Directors 
(three members in the six months ended on June 30, 2024), with remuneration amounting to 
153.946,20 euros in wages and salaries (152.340,01 euros in the six rnonths ended on June 30, 
2023) and 7.279,74 euros in other rernuneration (9.597,27 in the six months ended on June 30, 
2023). 

As of June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, there are no loans or advances to the Parent 
Company's Board ofDirectors, as well as commitments for pension supplements, guarantees or 
sureties granted in its favour. 
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Other Information Regarding the Board of Directors 

Pursuant to the Capital Companies Law, it is reported that the members of the Parent Company's 
Management Body do not hold interests in other companies with the same, similar or 
complementary corporate purpose. 

In accordance with the above-mentioned Law Capital Companies, it is also reported that the 
members of the Board have carried out no acti vity, on their own behalf or on behalf of others, 
with the Group, which may be considered to be not in accordance with normal trading and not 
carried out under normal market conditions. 

NOTE 21. OTHER INFORMA TION 

The average number of persons ernployed during the six months ended 30 June 2024 and 2023, 
by category, is as follows: 

2024 2023 

Senior Executives 3 3 
Administration 6,55 7,88 
Commercial 17,61 23,53 
Human Resources 2 3,55 
Production 80,03 96,01 
Customer service 7 8,07 
Bus iness development 8 9,96 
Compliance 3,45 6 

0,88 
Intellectual Property 1 

TOTAL 129,52 159,00 

The distribution of staff at the end of each six-rnonth period ending 30 June 2024, by category 
and gender, is as fol lows: 

Senior Executives 
Administration 
Commercial 
Production 
Maintenance 

Customer service 
Business development 

Compliance 

Human Resomces 

Intellectual Property 

TOTAL 

Hombres 

3 
7 
64 

1 
3 

81 

2024 

-Mujeres 

2 

5 
10 
16 
2 
6 
5 

3 

2 

51 

Total 

3 

8 
17 
80 
2 

7 
8 

4 

2 

132 

Discapacidad mayor 
o igual al 33% 

2 
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The distribution of staff at the end of each six-month period end ing 30 June 2023, by category 
and gender, is as fo llows: 

Senior Executives 
Aclministration 
Commercial 
Procluction 
Maintenance 
Cuslomer service 
Business developmenl 
Compliance 
Human Resources 
lntellectual Properly 

TOTAL 

Hombres 

1 
3 
10 
77 

1 
3,30 

1 

96,30 

2023 

Mujeres 

2 
4,55 
13,75 
20,38 
0,88 
7,07 
6,96 

5 
2,55 

63,14 

Discapacidad mayor 
Totnl o igual al 33% 

3 
7,55 
23,75 
97,38 
0,88 
8,07 
10,26 

6 
2,55 

159,44 2 

The amount of fees accrued for the ind ividual and consolidated audit services of the Interirn 
Consolidated Financia l Staternents corresponding to the six-rnonth period ended on June 30, 
2024 has amounted to 26.750 euros (25.700 euros in the 6-month period ended on 30 June 
2023). 

lt is reported that the Parent Company has paid during the year the premium corresponding to 
the civi l liability policy that would eventually cover damages caused to third parties dueto acts 
or omissions related to the performance of its duties. The amount of the premiurn amounted to 
76.942,52 euros (72.904,77 euros in the previous year). 

NOTE 22. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 

Detai ls of goodwill in consolidation as of June 30, 2024 are as follows, in euros: 

Cost Amortisation Impairment Nct Valuc 
30/06/2024 30/06/2 024 30/06/2024 30/06/2024 

Cost: 
Lleidanet PK.l, S.L. 4.688.429,58 ( 1.220.460,66) ( 190.207,60) 3.277.761,32 

Goodwill ou consolidation 4.688.429,58 (1.220.460,66) ( 190.207,60) 3.277.761,32 

Details of goodwill in conso lidation existing as of December 31, 2023, is as fo llows, in euros: 

Cost: 
Lleidanel PKl SL (befare lndenova, 

Cost 
31/12/2023 

S.L.) 4.668.429,58 

Goodwill on consolidation 4.688.429 ,58 

Amortisation 
31/12/2023 

(996.805,65) 

(996.805,65) 

Impairmcnt 
31/12/2023 

( 190.207,60) 

(190.207,60) 

Net Vnlue 
31/12/2023 

3.501.41 6,33 

3.501.416,33 
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The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has conducted an ana lys is of the recoverability 
of the previously mentioned consolidation goodwi ll, for which cash flows based 011 sales 
projections for the period 2024-2028 have been employed. According to Management, these 
projections are based on the budget for 2024, the degree of compliance with itas of tbe date of 
preparation of these Consol idated lnterim Financia! Statements, and Management's best 
expectations for the business through 2028 for the corresponding analysis of potential 
impairments as of June 30, 2024. A sales growth of 13,2%, 20%, 17,5%, 15%, and 13% has 
been estimated for each of the subsequent 5 years, respectively. Additionally, the cash :flows 
have been discounted using the after-tax weighted average cost of capital. The discount rate 
applied has been 15,3%, anda perpetua! rent of2% has been estimated. 

In light ofthe above, the Board of Directors ofthe Parent Company considered impairi11g the 
consolidation goodwill in the fisca l year 2023 by an amount of 190.000 euros (see Note 5) 
based on the expected generation of cash flows for the upcoming years from said subsidiary. 
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GROUP LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS 
TELEMÁ TICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR 
THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 
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GROUP LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS 
TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR 
THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2024 

ln compliance with the provis ions of the Capital Companies Law, the directors then present the 
director 's report for the year, in order to complement, expand and comment on the balance 
sheet, profit and loss account and the corresponding report for the first half of the year 2024. 

l. BUSINESS EVOLUTION 

The group has managed to increase its sa les by 10% during this first semester compared to the 
same semester of the 2023 fisca l year. 

We have a considerable change in the rnix where sa les of ICX Wholesale Solutions account for 
38% of total sales in 2024, compared to 32% in 2023. 

Sales b't_ business unit (thousand euros¿ 2023 (6 month) 2024 (6 month) YoY € vov %1 
Contracti ng 1.622 1.588 -34 -2% 

Notifi cation 880 1.032 152 17% 

Other SaaS 1.705 1.513 -192 -11% 
SMS Solutions 1.664 1.765 101 6% 
ICX Wholesale Solutions 2.863 3.678 815 28% 

Total 8.734 9.576 842 10% 

The wholesale market, despite being a mature market characterized by reduced marg ins, has a 
strong brand image with Lleida.net, which is recognized by its customers, as ev idenced by a 
28% increase in sales. Our strategy in this business line focuses on maintaining margins per 
sale. 
We also have growth in sales from the SMS Solutions line, aimed at our national customers, 
which has increased its sa les by I O 1.000 euros dueto the quality of the product and the trust of 
our clients. 

Tbe SaaS line has shown d iverse developments. Contract sales are nearing 1,6 rnillion euros, 
driven by individually configurable standard circuits for customers. Our strategy focuses on 
increasing the number of standard users, which require fewer technical resources and offer 
greater profitability. Additionally, we have d irected our commercial strategy towards sector­
specific verticals, offering standard C lick&Sign so lutions that a llow processes to be replicated 
across various transactions. This approach has had a progressive impact on our sales, as it 
s implifies processes that are more cost-effective than custom developrnents, resulting in higher 
profitability anda larger potentia l market. 

Within Other SaaS, we include service licenses as well as ali email verification transactions, 
timestamps, phone numbers, and identi ty checks. We have seen a decrease this semester of 
11 %, amounting to 192.000 euros, mainly due to the non-renewal of unprofitable contracts, 
changing the commercial focus towards more transactional bi lling and less custom 
deve lopment, which had lower marg ins. 
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/ncome Statement (thousand euros) 2023 (6 month) 2024 (6 month) VoV€ vov %I 

Net turnover 8.734 9.576 842 10% 

Supplies (3.740) (4.533) 793 21% 

Gross margin 4.994 5.043 49 1% 

Staff expenses {3.386) (2.840) (546) -16% 

Other operating expenses (1.811) (1.333) (478) -26% 

Capitalization 444 518 74 17% 

EBITDA 241 1.388 1.147 476% 

Other operating income 26 46 20 77% 

Amortization (1.039) (1.041) (2) 0% 

Other earni ngs o o -
Operating earnings (7) (4) 3 43% 

Net Financia! earnings (779) 389 1.168 150% 

Exchange differences (66) (114) 48 73% 

Pre-tax earnings o o o -
Profit tax (11) (14) 3 27% 

Financia! year's earnings (856) 261 1.117 130% 

The gross margin on sa les increases by l % in abso lute figures, derived from the relative weight 
ofWholesale sales with a lower margin on total sa les. 

In December 2023, the Group carried out an employment regulation process, which has reduced 
the average workforce by 26% during the semester compared to the same period in 2023. 
Custom-made work, which requires more labour, has been part of the focus of this strategy. In 
the long term, we aim to decrease the revenue associated w ith these customized processes, 
gradually compensating with the increase in standard products. This transition w1U free up 
resources, allowing us to develop new functionalities and improve operational efficiency. As a 
result, personnel costs have decreased by 16%. Expenses for externa! services have been 
reduced to l ,3 mi Ilion euros, representing a decrease of 26% compared to the same period in 
2023. This sav ing is the result of a thorough analysis of each ítem, aimed at optimizing both 
participation in fairs and business trips. Additionally, the recovery plan has been key in reducing 
costs by eliminating renta[ fees, consultants, insurance, and any other expenses that could be 
optim ized. 

The semi-annual EBITDA stands at 1.388 thousand euros, increasing by 476% compared to the 
same period last year. This increase is due to both sales growth and cost reduction, 
demonstrating that the Lleida.net group has returned to profitability. 
The operating result is 389 thousand euros, increasing by more than 1 million euros compared 
to the first six months of 2023. Fina lly, the result before taxes is 261 thousand euros, 
representing a 130% increase compared to the same period last year. 
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2. IMPORTANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE CLOSURE 

Subsequent to J une 30, 2024, and up to the date of preparation of this Management Report, the 
Group has carried out a share buyback program in its parent company, which concluded on July 
8, 2024, during which 80.644 shares were acquired for a total expenditure of 99 .971 euros. 
Following this program, the percentage of treasury stock of the company stands at 2,34%. 
No adclitional events have occurred beyond those a lready mentioned in the explanatory notes 
of the annual accounts and the previous point, which would revea) c ircumstances that existed 
as of June 30, 2024, ancl that, due to the s ignificance of their economic impact, would 
necess itate adjustments in the Financia! Statements or modifications in the information 
contained in the explanatory notes. 
There are also no other subsequent events, different from those already mentioned in the 
explanatory notes, that demonstrate conditions that did not existas of June 30, 2024, and that 
are of such significance that they require addi tional information in the explanatory notes of the 
annual accounts 

3. PROBABLE EVOLUTION OF THE GROUP 

The forecasts for fisca l year 2024 are to increase sales of the Group's standard SaaS products, 
specifically notification and electronic contracting. [t w ill a llow an increase in the gross margin 
and thanks to the containment of expenses we w ill achieve a higher EBIDTA. 

4. R&D ACTIVITIBS 

IJ1 the first half of 2024, the Group has invested 518 thousand euros in research activities a imed 
mainly at the Group's certification line and hybrid products together w ith the technology of 
Lleida.net PKI, S.L. 

5. OPERATIONS WITH OWN SHARES 

According to the regulations established by BME Growth and Euronext Growth, the company 

signed a liquidity agreement with the placement bank upa n its market debut. T his agreement 

stipulates both the delivery of a certain amount of its own shares and the deposit of a cash 

amount. The objective of this contract is to allow investors to trade the company's shares, 

ensuring that anyone interested has the opportun ity to buy or sel! shares. 

As of June 30, the company had 297. 198 shares va lued at 478.508,03 euros on that date, which 

accounted far 1,85% of the shares of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. 
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

During 2024, the Group is not exposed to significant exchange rate risk, therefore it does not 
carry out operations with exchange rate fina ncia! instruments. 

The treasury department has a dai ly view of the actual treasury situation and compares it with 
the weekly forecasts made. The Group has a comfortable short-term financia[ capacity, as 
reflected by the positive balances in the credit accounts. 

In tbe face of global unce1tainties, such as the spread of COVID-19, the Group has achieved 
the col laboration of financial institutions to sign new financing agreements, both short and long 

term. 

The main exchange rate risks that the Group has are with the dallar and the Colombian peso. 

The group does not currently operate with exchange rate insurance, although it is a variable that 
is being analyzed for the future. The risk is reduced in the group, because we have both expenses 
and income in those currencies, so we use checking accounts in those currencies to be able to 
meet payments in foreign currency with collections in foreign currency. When we have a 
currency defect, we go to the spot market, always analyzing the evolution of the currency a 
month in advance to be a ble to take advantage of the best moment for the exchange. 

7. DEFERRALS OF PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS 

lnformation regarding deferrals of payment to suppl iers is shown in the Financia[ Statements 
in Note 1 O. 

************ 



PREPARA TION OF THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIRECTORS' REPORT 

In compliance with company law, the Board of Directors of LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS 
TELEMÁTICS, S.A. draws up the lnterim Consolidated Financia! Statements and the 
Consolidated Directors' Report for the period that ends on June 30, 2024. Botb of thern are 
comprised in the attached pages number 1 to 57. 
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÀTICS, S.A. 
 

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023 

 (Expressed in Euros) 
 
ASSETS 30/06/2024 31/12/2023    

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 10.719.325,61 10.788.459,33    

Intangible assets 3.494.635,88 3.533.994,19 
Research 2.048.016,01 2.058.330,60 
Industrial property 813.578,16 757.911,63 
Computer applications 108.709,37 132.386,06 
Other intangible asset 524.332,34 585.365,90    

Tangible fixed assets 423.419,03 473.750,72 
Land and buildings 140.885,80 143.440,41 
Technical installations and other tangible fixed assets 225.152,63 272.929,71 
Fixed assets under construction and advances 57.380,60 57.380,60    

Investments in long-term group companies and associates 6.170.680,82 6.215.413,90 
Equity instruments in group companies and associates 5.009.265,28 5.009.265,28 
Credits to group and associated companies 1.161.415,54 1.206.148,62    

Long-term financial investments 49.310,04 44.991,04 
Equity instruments 10.197,40 10.197,40 
Other financial assets 39.112,64 34.793,64    

Deferred Tax Assets 581.279,84 520.309,48 
 

  

CURRENT ASSETS 5.247.699,63 4.674.000,18    

Trade and other receivables 3.567.019,18 3.254.877,06 
Client receivables for sales and services 3.131.139,15 2.424.901,12 
Clients, group companies and associates 337.115,87 702.232,04 
Sundry debtors 79.678,76 83.176,98 
Staff 2.187,45 - 
Current tax assets 15.538,25 40.007,92 
Other receivables from Public Authorities 1.359,70 4.559,00    

Short-term investments in group companies and associates 797.531,49 485.801,18 
Short-term loans to group and associated companies 797.531,49 485.801,18 

 
  

Short-term financial investments 104.514,49 362.373,00 
Other financial assets 104.514,49 362.373,00 

 
  

Accruals 168.416,65 242.948,75    

Cash and cash equivalents 610.217,82 328.000,19 
Cash 610.217,82 328.000,19 

      
TOTAL ASSETS 15.967.025,24 15.462.459,51 

 
 
 
 
 



 
LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÀTICS, S.A. 

 
BALANCE SHEETS AS OF 

JUNE 30, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023 
(Expressed in Euros) 

 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 30/06/2024 31/12/2023 
EQUITY 3.769.894,60 2.954.368,29    

Equity 3.769.894,60 2.954.368,29    

Capital 320.998,86 320.998,86 
Share Capital 320.998,86 320.998,86    

Issue Premium 5.244.344,28 5.244.344,28    

Reserves 1.855.406,52 2.628.803,65 
Legal and statutory 64.199,77 64.199,77 
Other Reserves 1.791.206,75 2.564.603,88    

(Shares and own holdings in equity) (478.508,03) (1.448.058,18)    

Prior year's results (3.791.720,32) (1.043.451,96)    

Financial year’s earnings 619.373,29 (2.748.268,36)    

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4.379.089,46 5.260.440,53    

Long-term debts 4.379.089,46 5.260.440,53 
Long-term provisions 8.474,45 200.000,00 
Debts with credit institutions 3.381.092,18 4.070.917,70 
Other financial liabilities 989.522,83 989.522,83 

 
  

CURRENT LIABILITIES 7.818.041,18 7.247.650,69  
  

Short-term provisions 222.354,51 40.235,36 
   

Short-terms debts 3.919.527,77 4.270.099,32 
Debts with credit institutions 3.408.771,87 3.556.264,52 
Other financial liabilities 510.755,90 713.834,80    

Trade and other payables 3.676.013,74 2.937.226,01 
Suppliers 2.730.225,13 1.831.102,39 
Suppliers, group companies and associates 19.665,93 238.463,03 
Sundry creditors 291.392,77 230.818,10 
Staff (remuneration payable) 84.345,15 1.229,00 
Other debts with Public Authorities 473.683,81 361.825,36 
Advances from clients 76.700,95 273.788,13    

Accruals 145,16 - 
      
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15.967.025,24 15.462.459,51 

 
 
 
 

 



LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMÀTICS, S.A. 
 

INCOME AND EXPENSES STATEMENT FOR THE 
SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2024 

AND THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2023 
(Expressed in Euros) 

 
 
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS  2024 (6 meses) 2023 (6 meses) 
    
Net turnover  8.066.751,25 6.973.670,06 
Net sales  8.066.751,25 6.973.670,06 
 
Work performed by the Company for its assets  381.995,64 290.376,76 
 
Supplies  (4.489.111,19) (3.683.823,96) 
Goods consumed  (4.489.111,19) (3.683.823,96) 
 
Other operating income  11.569,30 50.460,16 
Accessory income and other current management income  11.569,30 49.734,77 
Operating subsidies incorporated into results  - 725,39 
 
Staff expenses  (1.847.882,05) (2.295.322,20) 
Wage, salaries and the like  (1.391.469,62) (1.734.322,29) 
Fringe benefits  (456.412,43) (560.999,91) 
 
Other operating expenses  (983.162,52) (1.450.434,12) 
External charges for services  (960.890,95) (1.394.483,58) 
Taxes  (21.642,21) (24.296,83) 
Losses, Impairment and change in trade provisions  (629,36) (31.653,71) 
 
Amortization of fixed assets  (524.494,98) (562.810,14) 
    
Impairment and results of disposals of fixed assets  - - 
    
Other earnings  54,51 (70.000,00) 
    
OPERATING EARNIGS  615.719,96 (747.883,44) 
 
Financial income  32.804,67 21.846,15 
Income from marketable securities and other instruments 
financial, group companies and associates  27.230,31 20.600,91 
Other income from marketable securities and other financial 
instruments of third parties  5.574,36 1.245,24 
 
Financial expenses  (90.604,52) (42.600,70) 
For debts with third parties  (90.604,52) (42.600,70) 
 
Exchange differences  482,82 23.015,53 
    
Impairment and results from disposals of financial 
instruments  - - 
Impairments and losses  - - 
    
FINANCIAL EARNINGS  (57.317,03) 2.260,98 
    
PRE-TAX EARNINGS  558.402,93 (745.622,46) 
    
Profit tax  60.970,36 64.786,49 
    
EARNINGS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  
FROM ONGOING OPERATIONS  619.373,29 (680.835,97) 
    
 
FINANCIAL YEAR’S EARNINGS  619.373,29 (680.835,97) 
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